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M. L. MRREisTw, 

having been produced and first duly sworn as a mtness 

in the above entitled action, testified as follows. 

DIRECT 6XMlINATION 

BY MR. MEISON: 

Q M r .  Forrester, I‘m mck Melson, 

representing kcatee Utility Corporation and D D I .  

think we’ve met before. 
I 

A Yes, sir. 

Q In fact, frequently when w e  meet, you’re 

under oath and I ’ m  not. 

Have you had your deposition taken before? 

A Yes. 

Q A l l  right. If you have any - -  I ’ m  going 

to ask y-au a senes of questions. 

t h a t  you hn’t understand, ask for cla-nfication. 

Anything that I ask 

If you need to take a break any time, let 

us h o w .  And i f  you need - -  if you dmcover during t h e  

course of the deposition that you need to amend a prior 

answer, feel free to Q that. 

What &d yw & to prepare for your 

deposition t d y ?  

A 

has been filed in the case, including that of my own. 

I have reviewed mst of the testiwny t ha t  
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I've also prepared a notebook mth the donnnents that I 

made direct reference to in my testimnies. h d ,  of 

course, part of those references include the Various 

reprcs, et cetera, and I b m g h t  those reports w i t h  

m e .  

Q A l l  right. Ea do you essentially have 

with p u  today all of the w o r k  papers aqqwrting your 

vanous pieces of testimony and exhibite? 

A I'm not sure that I generated any work 

papers. 1. referred to a n&r of reports -- 
Q All right. 

A - -  and other cbcments. And t4 the best 

of my howle%e, I have at least the vast majority of 

those I 

Q You are the individual at Intercoastal who 

engaged Mr. Burton and Mr. Miller and Mr. Bowen for 

their testimny ~n t h i s  pmeeding; i s  that conect? 

A Yes, I believe I am. 

Q Okay. cwld you -- let's s t a r t  w i t h  Mr. 

Burton. 

asked h i m  to do in connection w i t h  t h i s  proceeding? 

w l d  you desmbe for me briefly what yw've 

A When we first retained Mr. Burton, I bn't 
think It was in dxect response to this proceeding. 

Since we first retained Mr. B u r t o n ,  I have asked him to 

& various analyses, and more particularly, the 

6 

construction of a d e l ,  a predictive model, for 

Intercoastal Utilities to reflect future operations and 

the results of those operations. 
Q A l l  n g h t .  What about M r .  Miller? 

What was the scope of his engagement? 

A Essentially, to create a Conceptual Master 

P l a n  f o r  the provisional service to the area west of 

the Intracoastal Waterway. 

Q Had you previously had a different 

engineer prepare a Conceptual Master Plan for service 

to that  area? 

A Yes. Mr. Sumner Waltz prepared an initial 

plan for servlce to that area in con]unction with cur 

application to the St. Johns County Water and Sewer 

AuthoTity. 

Q Why did you elect to engage PBSU rather 

than continue mth Mr. Waltz for the PSC proceeding? 

A We simply wanted a larger firm that was a 

little better equipped to turn out wrk faster.  

Q What types of information - -  and we'll 

start mth Mr. Burton. What types of information &d 

you provide to M r .  Burton in connection with his 

developnent of thla predictive d e l ?  

A If I remenhr correctly, we were providing 

him basically with copies of our annual reports and 
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variaus information surrounding those annual reports 

Q By mudl  reports, do you mean the annual 

reports to your regulators? 

A Yes, to the St. Johns County Water and 

Sewer ibhnty. 

Q Did you also provide him w i t h  your fiscal 
year-end financial statements? 

A I really don't recall, to be truthful mth 

you, precisely hat we did provlde to him, whether that 

included the financial statements or not. 

Q Did you participate in any meetings wlth 

Mr. Burton during the course of his developnent of his 

predictive model? 

A Yes. I klieve we had tm or possibly 

three meetings dunng the course of the developnent of 

the model to review what progress he. had made on its 

developent. 

Q Do you have any notes of any of those 

meet inge ? 

A No, I hn't. 

Q Do you h o w  if you made notes 

contemporaneously dunng any of those meetlngs? 

A I h ' t  remember generating any notes 

during those meetings. 

Q Who else was inwlved in those meetings 

h=yvnd you and Mr. B u r t o n ?  

A I really don't have a clear recollection, 
but I would imagine that Mrs. Tilley and, certainly, 

Mr. James were in those meetings. 

Q Did you meet nth Mr. Jim Miller during -- 
(Brief discussion off the record. ) 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Okay. During the c a r s e  of Mr. Miller's 

preparation of his Conceptual Master Plan, what type of 

interaction did you have wlth Mr. Miller? I mean Mr 

Jim Miller. 

A I really don't have a clear recollection 

of all of the interaction that w e  had with him in 

detail. 

information that we had on the ensting system, a good 
deal of which was the operation performance statistics, 

information concerning the configuration of the 

systems, and, then, of c a m e ,  m o u s  information frcm 

the annual r e p ~ s  in closing, et cetera. 

It was obvlously to provlde him mth 

Q Did you give MI. M i l l e r  any instruction as 

to how Intercoastal desired to serve the western 

servlce area? 

A I'm sure we discussed it, but I cbn't have 

a clear recollection of exactly hat that conversation 

was. 
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Q Did you express to Mr. Miller a preference 1 

2 

3 

A I k n o w  that we discussed it. I really 4 

5 

to serve the western servlce territory aut of existing 

facilities to the extent poesible? 

don't remember a conversation that falls precisely 

n t h i n  the parameters of p u r  question. 

Q 
with Mr. Miller, and in as much detail as p u  can 

recall them today. 

Tell me d m t  conversations you do remember 

A I think it was pretty much to indicate to 
ham that w e  wanted to provide service to that area and 

we wanted it to be as high a quality of service as we 

pssibly eould. I think we had several conversations 

early on abwt the pssibility of providing reuse water 

frrm the eastern side of the service area to the 
western side. We thought that that was a g d  idea 

because that water was typically permitted tQ be 

discharged to the Intracoastal Waterway. 

like it could be used mre fmtfully in the western 

area in order to provide reuse service. 

And we felt 

Q Did you provide Mr. Miller with any of the 

pnor enqneenng analyses &ne by Mr. Waltz? 

A I do not specifically recall promding 
that infomtion to Mr. Miller. I ' m  sorry; I just 

cbn't recall that. 
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Q DZI you recall whether Mr. Waitz's Plan of 

service that was presented to the St. Johns County 

Water and Sewer Authority in 1999 involved the 

provision of water service to the initial phase or 

phases of the Nccatee Development frcm exlsting 

capacity on the eastern side of the Intracoastal 

Waterway ? 

A Not initially, because the initial 

engineering analysis that we had done did  not 

anticipate Nocatee. Nocatee was riot annwced as a 

developent until after Intercoastal's application wae 

filed. 

I think we came back with an amendment to 

that engineerzng study simply saying that watee 

could, or the initial phases of Nocatee could, be 

served from that plran which was to extend water f run  
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the eastem area over into the western area. 

of course, future phases of Nocatee could be served 18 

And then,  17 

from the plant expansion which we intended to install 19 

in the western service area, 20 

Q Do you recall whether any version of M r .  21 

Waltz's Master Plan involved wastewater service being 22 

pro~ded to the Nocatee kvelopnent from existing 23 

wastewater treatment plants on the eastem side of the 24 

Intracoastal Waterway? 25 

A I think it was discussed. I don't 

remenher exactly in what vein. 

(I Is all of the wastewater treated at your 

existing plant treated to the standards necessary for 

residential reuse? 

A It's treated to public access standards. 

Q And what ccPmritments exist today for that 

treated effluent? 

A The only camitment that I ' m  a w a r e  of that 

exists aa of today is to pmvlde recleaned water to the 

Saqxass Country Club. 

Q And is there an upper bund on the amunt 
of wastewater that yw are required to provlde? 

A I think the agreement, if I remember 

correctly, mentions a figure of 7 5 0 , 0 0 0  gallons. I 
believe there was a letter agreement h i c h  was done 

that did not d f y  the original agreement but simply 

said we would provide whatever effluent was available 

to the Sawgass Country Club Golf Course. 

Q Do you h o w  whether that agreement and 

that subsequent letter were provided, at  any pint, to 

St. Johns county during the -e of any negotiations 
that Intercoastal and the county may have had? 

A Negotiations? 

Q k t  me simplify the question. 

12 

Lb yw h c w  whether that agreement mth 

Sawysass, and the subsequent letter agreement that you 

descxihed, have ever been furnished to St. Johns 

county? 
A I believe that they were fumished to the 

St. Johns county Water and Sewer Authonty. I how the 

initial agreement was. I cbn't remember whether the 

second letter of agreement was formally presented to 

them or not. 

Q Are yw farmliar nth any negotiations 

that have taken place &tween Intercoastal and St. 
Johns County regarhng the potential acquisition of 

Intercoastal Utilities? 

A I know that there were scme negotiations. 

I think it was at the request of St. Johns County to 

provlde a proposal for an Intercoastal sale to St. 

Johns County. I was not a part of those negotiatims. 

Q In the course of those negotiations, do 
you know hether Intercoastal provided to St. Johns 

munty copies of all of its utility service agreements? 

A I'm not really sure what - -  all of h a t  

dxuments were provided to St. Johns County at that 

time. A l l  of the &aments that were provlded went 

through OUT attorneys' office, Rose, Sundstrwn and 

Bentley. I bn't think I actually saw a cmplete list 
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of all of the documents. 

Q Were you ever asked to provide Rose, 
Sundstran and Bentley with documents forwarded to the 

Cbunty i n  connection with the purchase negotiations? 

A I ' m  s u e  'chat we were asked to pronde 
numerous documents to them, but I Qn't recall 

precisely what &="ts. 

Q B you recall whether yw were asked to 

provide them the utility servlce agreement with 

Sawgrass or the letter agreement to which you referred? 

A 

Q 

I really don' t rememkr. 

If you had been asked to provide all 
utility service agreements, wwld you regard the letter 

agreement yw've mentioned as falling within that 

category. of &aments? 

A 

Q 

I think I probably wxld have. 

You indicated that the Comnitrnent to 

Saqrass  is the only reuse Ecnrmitment in place today. 

n> you anticipate any additional 

d t m e n t s  of reuse, say, within the next six mths? 

A Well, 1 anticipate one additional service 

to the Plantations Developrent. 

letter and asked us if we would provide reuse or, 

parhn m e ,  reclaimed water to them as a badcup to their 

system which uses water a t  of the stormwater lake 

They did write us a 
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14 

system. 

Q And have you agreed to do that, or are you 

m the process of negotiating an agreement? 

A I ' m  not sure exactly where those 

negotiations are right at the m a t .  

handled by Mr. Bill Brannen. I helped prepare an 

agreement to sutmit to Plantations for that purpose, 

buc I ' m  not aware of just ewctly where those 

negotiations stand right at Che nrrment. 

?hey have been 

Q Do you h o w  what amount of reclaimed water 

mll be camrutted to Plantations under that propeed 

agreement? 

A No, six.  In  fac t ,  I think we have 

consistently said we can't put our finger on an exact 
munt because it is a backup supply. 

In other w o r d s ,  their pnmaxy supply is 

their stormwater system, so there isn't any way that I 
know of to put our finger on any particular amount of 

water that they may or may not use in the future. 

It was my understanding that it would be 

strictly on a demand basis and that we couldn't 

guarantee any specific -ut to them, nor muld they 

guarantee to take any specific armunt, although their 

initial request letter asked for all of the water that 
was available over and above what Sawgrass country C l u b  
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undd take. 

Q Did yw participate in the preparation of 
responses, Intercoastal's responses to matee Utility 

Corporatian' 8 interrogatories and cbcment production 

requests to Intercoastal? 

A I think I have participated in some of 

those. 

Q Do you knew if you participated in any 
that resulted in responses provided =thin the past 

wxlth? 

A Seems like I had some conversations mth 

Mr. Wharton &ut the availability of t ha t  information. 

I had discussed it w i t h  Mr. James and explained to Mr. 

wharton, you h o w ,  under hat or hat information nught 

be available. Actually, it was mre of what 

information was not available. 

Q Dld you make any search for dxuments 
Interumstal might have provided to St. Johns county in 

connection with any acqcllsition negotiaticms? 

A 

a r e  concerned? 

Q 

You mean as far as my own personal files 

Were yw involved in any search for  

documents that might have been provided to St. Johns 

County as part of t h e  acquisition negotiations in your 

files? 

16 

A I looked for such donrments, and I could 
not identify any specific ckaments that I had provided 

out of my f i l e s .  Now, obviously, you h o w ,  we are 

continually asked for all kinds of information that 

tomes f m  our annual reports and our statistical 

s d e s  having to do w i t h  operations, and I typically 

p m d e  that lnformaticm to Mr. James for v a n o u s  

purposes. 

Q You mentioned earlier that you had talked 
w i t h  Mr. James abut the dxment p r d u c t i o n  requests. 

Did you ask him abaut any ckcuments that 

might have been provided to St. Johns County in 

connection mth acquisition negotiations? 

A It was my understanding in our 

conversation that all of those documents went 

through - -  that i s ,  €or St. Johns County - -  went 
through our attorney's office. I &d not keep a 

spcific list of hat ckwments were being provided. 

A l l  of that went through Rose, Sundstxun and Bentley. 

And to the best of my knowledge, those are 

the only &aments that I ' m  personally aware of that 

have been provided. Now,  we had sane questions, I 

suppse, f m  St. Johns County's engineenng firm, 

Camp, Dresser and McKee, about the statistics of the 

operations of the systems. 
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Q Did you pxwvi.de any of that information to 1 

Camp, Dresser and McKee? 2 

A I think it was mre in the form of 3 

answenng questions, if I remember correctly, about the 4 

rnfonnation that had already been provided. I h ' t  5 

remember directly furnishing any additional information 

to them about that. 

Q 

questions &ut? 

What information was it they were asking 

A Mostly the flows to the plants, the growth 

history, the ERCs. I believe, at one point, they asked 

for m e  breakdowns of the plant assets, that is the 

treatment plant assets. 

explain to them we didn't keep our records m that form 

and we couldn't provide them the information h t  they 

wanted in the form that they wanted it. 

remember the gentleman's name that I was talking to 

about that, but we offered to t q  to cb that type of 

research, but we couldn't do it within the time frame 

that he wanted it. 

And I think w e  tz5ed to 

And I don't 

Q You indicated that they were inquiring 

about sane flow data and sane ERC data. 

Is that data that would have been provided 

to them by Intercoastal? 

A Well, I ' m  sure it was. 
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Q Let me show you a ikcment entitled, 

"Intercoastal Utilities, Inc. Proposed Acquisition by 

St. Johns County S u " q  of Financial Forecast 

Evaluation Analysis," and ask you if you've seen that 
ckcument before. 

A N o ,  sir I haven't seen that Qcument 
hefore. 

Q Da you have any idea whether t h i s  is a 

document that was provided by Intercoastal to St. Johns 
county? 

A I have no idea because I haven't seen that 

bcment before. 

Q All right. L e t  me show you a letter dated 

&gust 17, 2000 from William Sundstrun to B n a n  

Armstrong and ask you have you seen that donanent 

before. 

A I ' m  sorry; I don't remember. I don't 

remember seeing that &cument. 

Q Is it fa ir  to say khat that bzument 

requests the return of all &aments previously 
provlded by Intercoastal to St. Johns County in 

connection with the negotiation of an acquisition? 

A Well, I don't think it actually says 

anything about an acquisition. 

"Due to the termnation of discussions between IcU and 

It just simply says, 
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St. Johns County, ICU respectfully requests return of 

all the baments heretofore provided to you and the 
county by Icu." 

It sounds like the inference is t h a t  it 

was docnrments provided to them for sane type of 

discussions. It might very well have been the 

acquisitions, but it bsn't say that. 

Q Eo you b o w ,  as w e  sit here today, can you 

specifically identify any documents that were provided 

by Intercoastal to St. Johns m t y  in connection with 

discussims regatding the acquisition of Intercoastal? 
A The only documents that I could 

specifically identify that were almst undoubtedly 

provided to t h e m  w l d  have copies of our annual 

reports, and the copies of the statistical operations 
of the plants. 

specifically identify right at the ment. But that's 

typically vhat we have to provide to almost everyboay. 

I did not prepare all of the cbcuments. 

that went to Rose, Sundstran and Bentley for that 

proposal. 

That's the only ones that I could 

Apparently, 

Q Do you how h muld have assembled 

those? 

A I would imagine that it m u l d  have been a 

canbination of probably M r .  James and probably Mr. 

20  

B m n  w i t h  sane assistance, possibly, frwn Ellen 

T i  1 ley. 

Q You have filed four pieces of testimony 

and attached exhibits in this dxket; is that nght? 

A Yes, sir. I have filed Direct Intervener, 

Rebuttal and Supplemental Intervener Testimny i n  t h s  

dodcet . 
Q Have you been asked to prepare, or are you 

planning to prepare any additional testimny or 

exhibits for use in this prcceechng? 

A I have not been asked to enter any 

additional. testimny as yet. 

Q 

A No, sir. 

Q 

Are you planning to prepare any? 

A r e  there any discussions h t  whether or 

not p u  should prepare any additional testimony? 

A I Qn't remember any &scussions about my 

having to prepare additional testimony. 

Q So as we sit here today, you do not 

anticipate filing any additional testimny or exhibits 

in this &&et; is that conect? 

A I don't how whether it's fair to say that 

I anticipate filing no additional testimny. 

simply saying that I haven't been asked to prepare any 

ad& tional testimony . 

I ' m  
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Q And have not discussed the preparation o€ 

additional testimny? 

A Not for myself, no. 

MR. WARTON: And, Rick, to be fair,  you, 

meaning M. L. Foxrester as oppoeed to 

Intercoastal? 

MR. MBLSON: Y e s .  

MR. WHAR?DN: Okay. 

THE WIl”ES.5: Well, that’s what I todc it 
to mean. 

BY MR. ME”: 

Q To the best of p u r  bowledge, &es 

Intercoastal contend in this case that Nocatee Utility 

Wrporation lacks the financial ability to sene the 

Watee Developnent? 

A 1 don’t believe any of my testimxy, or 

the testimny that  has been filed by the Intercoastal 
witnesses, attempts to say that h a t e e  Utility 

Corpration h s  not have the f h c i d  wherewithal to 

carry out its application. 

Q So to the best of your knowledge, 
Intercoastal does not mntend that Nocatee lacks the 

fmmcial wherewithal to carry out its Plan of Service? 

A Well, in terms of capital investment, I 

don’t think we’ve actually said that they lack the 

capacity to be able to Q that. 

concerns, obViously, h u t  their ongoing operations and 

whether or not their ongoing operations of the system 
that they have proposed Will provide adequate service 

at reasonable rates. 

We have had m e  

Q Are you familiar w i t h  the agreement 

between a and Nocatee Utility ccmpany? 
A I have read that agreement. 
Q In light of that agreement, does 

Intercoastal contend in this case that  k a t e e  Utility 

~ r p r a t i o n  lacks the technical ability to provide 

service to the Nocatee kvelopent? 

A To the best of my knowledge, Nocatee 

Utility Corporation itself has no technical ability to 
operate these systems. 

Q Let me ask this: Do you understand rhat 
under the agreement mth that matee, essentially, 

w i l l  obtain that wherewithal from J6A on a contract 

basis? 

A It is my understandug frun the agreement 

that JFA Will. operate the systems for Nocatee. 

Q Do yau have - -  
A But that’s a far cry frcm Nocatee hanng 

the technical expertise to do it themselves. 

Q Let me ask you this: Ibes Intermastal 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1s 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

22  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25  

have the technical ability to operate the water and 

wastewater system? 

A Yes, I believe it does, not only through 

its operation and maintenance agreement with Jax 

Utilities Management, but I also believe that it’s 
stcckholders and directors have a considerable a m ~ u n t  

of expertise in operating, maintainmg and managing 

water and wastewater systems. They have been in the 

business for a long time, and I think that they have, 
themselves, gained a good deal of expertise in that 

area. 

Q How many employees does Intercoastal have? 

A Intercoastal actually has no employees, no 

operating and maintenance employees. 

employees are furnished by Jax Utilities Management. 
All of ttbose 

Q In p u r  view, cbes JEA have the technical 

ability to provide water and wastewater servlce and 

utility management servlce to the -tee Mvelopnent? 

I believe that JEA 1s currently providing A 

water and wastewater utility services to a Wide m e t y  

of people. And in that respect, I would imagine rhat 

they have sane technical expertise in being able to 

provide service. 

Q Has Interroastal Utilities ever &sassed 

entering into a wholesale agreement mth JEA to provide 

2 4  

service to lands located west of the Intracoastal 

Waterway? 

A Yes. 

Q And when did those &scussions take place? 

MR. WHARTON: You mean &scussions with 

JEA? 

MR. NELSON: Yes. 

MR. WHARTDN: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: 

on Januay  4th of 1998. 

Those discussions took place 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q And hat W e n t  are you lwking at to 
refresh your recollection as to the date? 

A I am looking at a m e r ”  from myself 

to Mr. H. R. James, President of Intercoastal 
Utilities, and also to Wr. F. Marshall Veiderhng, 

Esquire. 

MR. MHLSON: Ib you have any objection if 

we mark that b e n t  as an exhibit to this 

deps i t ion? 

MR. WARTON: That would be fine. 

MR. MELSON: Let’s call that Exhibit No. 

1, and let’s put a yellow sticky on it 90 we car 

get a copy of it at a break. 

(The instrument last-above referred 
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to was marked as sxhibit No. 1 for 
Identification. ) 

B Y  MR. MELSON: 

Q And what was the substance of those 
negotiations? 

to refresh your recollection. 

You may want to refer to that memrandm 

A The memrandmn basically discusses the 

conversation that I had with Mr. Scott Kelly, J6A V i c e  

President in charge of construction, h u t  the 

pussibility of a utility sersices pxtnershlp agreement 

t o  pmnde water and wastewater services for Section H 
of the proposed Intercoastal expansion area. 

And, accordmg to Mr. Kelly, he discussed 

that matter mth Mr. James Chancellor, Executive Vice 

President for delivery, and their response was that 

JEA's obvlous first choice was to serve that area on a 

retail basis, but they muld not rule out a partnership 

agreement mth Intercoastal. 

Q And can you descnbe for me !hat Section H 

or Area H is? 

A It is in the western mst portion of the 

temtory that Intercoastal has applied for. 

MR. WAR!ION. Objection. 

BY M p . .  MELSON: 

Q 

A It surrounds Waldon Chase. 

Wbuld that be Waldon - -  
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Q Since that time, has Intercoastal had any 
other mscussions w i t h  

obtaining servlce on a bulk basis? 

about the pssbility of 

A No, they have not, not to my howledge, 

Q Has Intercoastal had internal discussions 

b u t  the circumstances under which it might reinitiate 

conversations nth JEA in an attempt to reach a bulk 

servlce arrangement of some sort? 

A I think I referred to that in my 

testimony, that we muld be mll ing  t o  look at that if 
the public Service Corrnussion felt that it was, for any 
reason, mre hneficial to the future customers for us 

to do that. 

Q Is there any circumstance, other than a 

c d s s i o n  hrection to look at that, that Intercoastal 

would consider an agreement Lnth JXA? 

A Well, the only other circumstance that I 

muld kx aware of wuld be one in which it w u l d  he 

mare advantageous to the future customers of the area. 

It is certainly not our first choice, obviously. 

Interccxstal has proposed another Plan  of Service which 

it feels is supenor to that. 

Q Have you ever contemplated obtaining any 

sort of operation or ahnistrative services frwn m, 
or has the contemplation been only that you rmght, 
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under certain circumstances, obtain water and 

wastewater treatment services? 

A If I understand your question correctly, 

has Intercoastal entertained the idea of obtaining 

operation maintenance sernces frcm JEA? 

Q Correct. 

A tbt to my knowledge. 

Q Has Intercoastal ever entertained 

obtaining bulk, wholesale utility senace from JEA for 

the life of whatever developments may exist on the 

westem side o f  the Intracoastal Waterway? 

( B r i e f  interruption.) 

(Dismssion off the record.) 

MR. M-DRIDN: Do you remember the 

question, M.L.? 

THE WITNESS: Would ypu repeat the 

question, because I don't remember all of it 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q The pint I ' m  t w n g  to get to is: If p u  

were contemplating obtaining sernce fran a, would it 

be for a perid of years, or muld it be for the life 

of a developnent project? 

A When we first approached JEA on J a n q  

4 t h ,  1998, our intent, at that particular time, was to 

only obtain wholesale water and wastewater semces 

28 

f m  them on a limited basis. And to the best of my 

knowledge, we have not senously entertained, as yet, 

obtaining those sefices on that basis for the l i f e  of 

the area. 

Q You were here a n g  Mr. Bowen's 

deposition this morning; is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Were you involved in the decision by 

Intercoastal not to have fln>ak, Dams and Nixon perform 

a renew of your financial statements for the year 

endmg Aupst 31, 2000? 

A No, I was not. 

Q Who would have made that decision on 

behalf of Intercoastal? 

A I w u l d  imagine that decision probably 

would have keen made by Mr. James, possibly M r .  

Erannen, but that's supposition on my part .  

Q When &d you first le- that Srroak, Dams 

and Nixon was not going to be asked to do a r e n e w  for 

the year endmg A p n l  31, ZOOO? 

A 

Q 

I think it was probably this "ming 

So in the ordinary m u s e  of your  

respnsibilities, you cb not see the au&t reports or 

excuse me, the renew reports from the outside 

accountants? 
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A No. I am n-ore concerned with the annual 

reparts that go to the regulatory authorities. 

Q Do yw ordinarily try to tie the 

information on the annual reports back to the financial 

statements? 

A No, sir. That's not a part of my 

responsibility . 
Q 
A 

Whose respnsibility would that be? 
I wwld imagine that would he either Mrs. 

Tilley or Mr. B o w e n ,  possibly Mr. Brannen muld be 

involved in that. 

Q That work is not &ne under your 

supervision? 

A No, it is not. 

Q Are you aware of the lending 

arrangement -- brrowing arrangement between 

Intercoastal utilities and First mion? , 

A I am not generally a part of any 

negotiations with the bank for loans, or at least I 
can't recall having been a paa of any of those 
negotiations. I think I did make a call to M r .  

Hogshead for Mr. James to request the original letter 

that we received fran the F i r s t  Wnion Bank, hi& I 
believe was on February 4th, 1999. 

Q And that original letter was requested in 
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connection rjlth the certification pmeehngs before 

the St. Johns County Water and Sewer Authority? 

A I believe it was, yes. 

Q 

fran M r .  Hogshead in connection w i t h  that Water and 

Sewer Authority proceeding? 

Was there a subsequent letter requested 

A Yes. I believe the June 3 d ,  1999 letter 

was basically to restate that d t m e n t  t h a t  they were 

nllmng to make to provide funmng for this expansicm. 

Q Did you have any inwlvement in requesting 

the l e t te r  about a year later that has h e n  suimutted 

in this PSC certificate &&et? 

A I really don't have a clear recollection. 

I may have made a call to Mr. Hqshead and asked him to 

update that letter, but I just really don't have a 

clear recollection of that, to be quite honest with 

you. 

The reason that I don't have a clear 

recollection of it is because I didn't recqnize the 

language about the confirmation of h i s  review of the 

Interccastal stcckholders' net mrth. 

Q If there were any financial covenants in 

the brrowmg arrangement between Intercoastal and 

F i r s t  Union, w u l d  you be aware of them? 

A No, sir. 
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Q I've asked these questions in the wrong 

order. 

Are yw aware of any covenants in the 
borrowing arrangements between Intercoastal and First 

Union? 

A The answer is the same, no. 

Q Did you participate in the decision for 

Mr. B u r t o n  to use a 6 . 5  percent interest rate in h s  

financial analysis? 
A No, I did not. 

Q Do you recall any discussions at a l l  about 

that ? 

A I ' m  sorry; I &n't recall any discussions 

about that. 

Q who, within Intercoastal, &d Mx. Burton 

interact w i t h  in terms of getting assumptions and 

information? 

A I wwld assume that that wuld either be 

M r .  James or M r .  Brannen. 

Q Are you familiar with the developer notes 
that are shown on pur financial statements and m Mr 

Burton' s financial analysis? 

A Are you referring to the developer notes 

that you particularly asked Mr. Bowen abut in his note 

number three -- 

Q Yes, sir. 

A -- to the financial statements? 
Q Yes. 

A Yes, I have some farmlianty with that. 

Q Tell me what you know about the 

circumstances under which those notes were put into 

place. 

A Well, I think that the notes have a 

various n h r  of purpbses. Sane of them, obnously, 

were a means of Intercoastal paying its hydraulic share 

of main extensions. I think one note that I can 

rememher was a pure loan from a developer to 
Intermastal for the construction of the Plantations 

Water Treatment Plant. 

Sane of those notes were to developers to 

pay for on-site lines in situations where the 

configuration of those lines or the design for the 

configuration of those lines had been changed or 

d f i e d  by Intercoastal Utilities for the purpse of 

improving sernce to the area. 

And, of course, sane of those got to be 50 

extensive or EQ -lex that the developer, I think in 

sane cases, resisted those changes and we simply 
purchased the on-site system i n  order to be able to 

make the changes that w e  wanted to make. 

32 
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Q Has Intercoastal ever discussed a sale of 

its systems to IJEA? 

A I think J6?i has emtacted Intercoastal 

about the sale of its systems. I, persanally, have not 

been involved in any negotiations for the sale of 
Intercoastal. 

Q Wen do you recall that the contact was 
irutiated by m? 

A I ' m  not sure that I can r e m e m b e r  a 

specific date. It seems to me that the St. Johns 

County W s s i o n  or the Water and Sewer Authority 

first brought up the notion of purchasmg 

Intercoastal's systems. I thmk it was in early 1998, 

possibly ' 97. My merrrory fails me. 

It seems like JEA got interested in 

purchasing Intercoastal and was asking for information. 
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I ' m  not really sure that there were any actual hard 17 

negotiations. If there were, Mr. James wuld have 18 

any &scussions on actual negotiations. 

carried those out. I do not remember being a part of 19 

20 

Q Do yw recall hearing abut those 21 

discussions? 22 

A I do not recall hearing abwt any 23 

discussion of negotiations. I can vaguely remehr 24 

pronding information to a, basically the same type 25 

of information that I have discussed before, growth 

information on mcs, statistical information on the 
operation of the plants, that type of data that most 

anybkiy d d  request if they're going to inquire  about 

anything with the utility. 

Q Do ycu recall if L E A  ever named the price 

that it would offer to pay for the system? 

A I ' m  sorry; I really don't recall JEA 

puttinq a price forward, at least that I ' m  aware of. 

Q Do you h o w  if Intercoastal ever named a 

pnce to JEA for which it w u l d  he Lnlling to sell the 

system? 

A Not that I'm aware of. As I said, Mr. 

James has handled all of that type of discussion, if 
indeed there have ken such discussions. 

Q Are you aware of whether there are now or 
m t h n  the past 60 days have been any ongoing 

dxcussions with J'~?L? 

A Not that I'm aware of or that I have been 
involved in. 

Q I understand YOU haven't heen involved in 

any. A r e  you aware of any? 
A No; I ' m e o r r y .  

Q I believe you may have answered this a 

Y o u r  recollection is that the first m e n t  ago. 
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overture about the sale  of the Intercoastal Utility 

systems came in 1997 or 1998 frcm St. John County; is 

that your recolleccion? 

A Yes, and I'm trying to remember m e  

&minerit that I can go back to, but right at the lranent 

I really can' t. Seems like to me, I remember a 

newspaper article that came out in one of the St. Johns 
county newspapers about the m t y  intending to make 

overtures to Intertoastal about that. 

I've been a little busy lately on water, 
wastewater rate cases, ceeificatian cases, et cetera, 

and I've been pretty mu& out of that loop. 

Q Reccgnizing that you're not the person wfio 

has actually participated in the negotiations, tell me 
what ycu lolow about the history of discussions with St. 

Johns Cwnty since 1990. 

Have there been ongoing discussions f m  

then until now? 

A There have been discussions that, if my 

memry serves me correctly and my reading of the 
newspapers tends to confirm, that went on through 1998. 

I'm not really sure of hat may have happened in 1999. 
And I'm sure that there have been some discussions, at 

least on the part of St. Johns County, more recently. 

But I really can't remember a specific instance that I 
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could pint to that causes that impression to be left 

on m e .  

Q Have you ever seen a draft of a Purchase 

and Sale Agreement between Intercoastal and St. Johns 

county? 

A I believe that was - -  the only one that I 

have ever seen was the one that I think was prepared by 

Rose, Sundstm and Bentley, but I don't remember the 

date of that. And I believe that was also in '98, if I 

remember correctly. In fact, I tin& we reviewed one 

Q Let m e  hand you a h e n t  entitled, 

"Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Water and 

Wastewater Pssets by and between Intercoastal 

Utilities, Inc., seller, and St. Johns County, Flor ida,  

purchaser. 'I 

Have you seen that &cument before? 

MS. BROWSS: R i c k ,  before Mr. Forrestex 

answers that question -- this is Suzanne 
Brownless -- is tha t  the &ament that we 

pronded to you in discovery? 
MR. MELSON: It's a docanent entitled, 

Agreement for Purchase and Sale". 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes, sir. Is t ha t  the 

document that we provided to you in our 

discovery? 
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MR. MELSON: Yes, it is. 

MS. BROWNLGSS: Thank you. 

MR. MELSON: Since Intercoastal provided 

no documents. 

TWE WITNESS: Mr. M e l s o n ,  I can’ t say that 

this particular document - -  or that I ever 
renewed this pareicular doosnent because this 
one, apparently -- in its preamble, it says that 

it has an anticipated date of 15th day of 
ALlgust, 2000. 

It seems like the proposed agreement that 
I had seen wuld have been an earlier date, so 
I’m not really sure, it might have been an 

earlier version of this. 

that I ’ v e  ever seen that particular document. 

But I can’t really say 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Are you aware of any action taken by the 

St. ~ o h s  county c”ussion in August of 2000 relating 

to a Purchase and Sale Agreement that had been 

negotiated between the county‘s staff and Intercoastal? 

A I believe I read a newspaper article that 

indicated that the county had rejected an offer that 
had been brought to them by Bill Young, the utilities 

director. 

Q 1 know you‘ve been pretty busy w i t h  this 
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extent it addressed the futures in matee, I ’ m  not 

really sure. 

Q Did you plov?.de any information to Mr. 
James, or myone else who may have k e n  involved in 

negotiations, regarding the n h r  of futures mthin 

the existing sewice territory that mght he avadable 

for sale? 

A I remember doing a schedule at one time 

which estimated the n&r of futures that  wuld be 

available within Intercoastal’s &sting area. 

Q h you have a copy of that document mth 

you today? 

A No, I donot. 

Q If you were asked to prwvide the following 

&aments relating to the potential acquisition of 

Intercoastal Utilities by St. Johns County, and part of 

that was all dccuments prepared by Intercoastal or its 
consultants in connection with the potential 

acqutsition, w l d  you regard that schedule of futures 

that you‘ve just descnbed as a document that would 

fall within the scope of tha t  request? 

A I canlt really say that I would because 

I ‘ m  not really sure what cbcuments have been provlded 

to St. Johns county. 

Q Now, this request doesn’t ask for 
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certification case. 

Da you recall a Motion for Continuance 

filed by St. Johns Gounty and Intercoastal to allow the 
county to consider such an offer? 

A Yes, I am aware of that continuance. 
Q And that would coincide -- 
A But I honestly cannot renterher the 

sequencing of dates to tell whether that was a result 

of this particular &=anent or not. 

Q Do you how whether, in the negotiations 

between St. Johns County and Intercoastal, any value 

was given in the proposed agreement for connections 

west of the Intracoastal Waterway? 

A I ‘ m  not really sure w h a t  the proposal that 

Mr. Young tcok before the County Ccmdssion entailed. 

Q 
A Oh, yes. 

Q 

Have you ever heard the term futures? 

Have you ever heard that the pmpsed 

agreement between Intercoastal and St. Johns County 

involved the payment of futures for the kcatee 

Development? 

A I h o w  it invalved the payment of futures, 
but I ’ m  not really sure to what extent. 

certamly imagine that tha t  certainly included the 

futures within Intercoastal’s existing area. 

I wuld 

To what 
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mething provided to St. Johns County. It asks for 

anything prepared by Intercoastal. 

A 

puqose? 

Anything prepared by Intercoastal for that 

Q Yes, sir. 
A Well, I couldn‘t identify it as being 

prepared for that purpose because, if I remember 
correctly, when I prepared that it m s  €or uty own 

information. N o w  whether or not  that information was 

passed along to St. Johns County, or anyone else for 

that matter, I really don’t h o w ,  but I prepared that 
as a statistical sumnary of Intercoastal’s present 

operations. 

In fact, if 1 remehr correctly, the 

entire schedule on uhich I did that estimated or 

calculated the present number of WCs and the present 

flows, and the present nmbers of ERCs that we were 

serving, the flows per WC, and then went on at the 

very end to calculate the possible total future ~ ~ n ~ b e l -  

of custcmers that would be available in the 
Intercoastal certificate axea. And that vas done on a 

per ERC, per acre, per Unit served basis. 

Q For what purpse did you prepare that 

schedule? 

A mite frankly, if I remebr correctly, it 
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was an u e t e  of a schedule that I had been preparing 

on sort  of a continuing basis for several years. 

Q 
A 

To whom did you provide t h i s  schedule? 

I'm not really sure who I provided it to. 

I think I was keeping it, basically, w i t h  my o m  

statistical studes that I had made on flws, WCs and 

future semce w i h  the area. 

Q Were you ever asked by Mr. James how many 
futures you had in the eastern service area that might 

be available for sale? 

A Oh, I ' m  sure I've been asked that a nwnber 

of times. 

Q Would you have consulted that document in 
responding to Mr. James' question? 

A I would have probably consulted that 

document in answering that question, and may very well 

have pmvlded a copy of that dxunent. 

Q As w e  sit here today, do you know whether 

there are any ongoing discussicns or negotiations 
ktween St. Johns County and Intercoastal Utilities 

regarding the purchase of the utility system? 
A 

Q As of today. 

A I'm sorry; I ' m  not really aware of any. 

Q khat are the mst recent discussions 

You mean as of today? 
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you're aware of? 

A In all  honesty, as I sit here right n o w ,  I 

cannot remember anyching chat has been going on within 
the past few weeks or mnth .  

little tco engrossed with this case. 

I ' m  afraid I've been a 

Q Let me show you a letter dated May 30th, 

2000, fran Rose, Sundstrum and Bentley to Public 

F m c i a l  Management and ask you i f  you've seen that  

letter before. 

A I ' m  sorry; I don't remember seeing any 
such letter. 

Q In the -- 
A I was trying to look at m e  of the 

figures and see if m e  of the figures sounded familiar 

to me, but the only one that sounds familiar is t h e  

wastewater capacity or maybe the average mc usage. 
Q In the first paragraph of the letter, it 

refers to a spreadsheet of projected incunes, expenses 
and sernce for Intercoastal Utilities in the hands of 

St. Johns county. 

Are r>u familiar n t h  any such 

spreadsheet? 

A No, sir. 

Q That spreadsheet m u l d  not be mething 

that you prepared? 
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A NO. 

Q O W *  

A No, I'm sorry. I an't recollect any 
familiarity with that. 

MS. BROWNLESS: Excuse me, R i c k ,  this is 

Suzanne, again. 

That's a letter dated May 3 O t h ,  2000 from 

L&lO to who? 

MR. MELSDN: From Bill Sundstrun, I 

believe, to Lavon Wisher at PFM. 

MS. BROWNLGSS: Okay. Thank you. 

MR. MELSON: I suspect it's also among 

the &aments that the County ploduced. 

MS. BR-SS: Would that have been the 

dccunents that we provided you fran the clerk's 

office, R i c k ?  

MR. MELSON: I believe it was in the first 

group of documents that you provided on whatever 

the eight day extension was. 

MS. BRCWtLESS: Okay. Thank you. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Mr. Forrester, hat administrative - -  
other than this certificate extension case, hat 

regulatory adrmnlstratlve proceedings 1s Intercoastal 

involved in at the present time? 
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A As far as I hw, the only other one is 

the preparation of a rate application to St. Johns 

county. 

Q What b u t  an audit by St. Johns county? 
A Oh, yes. I ' m  somy; I neglected thar.. 

Q Tell me the circumstances surrounding that 
audit. 

A The circumstances surroun&ng the a u h t ?  

Q What led to the initiation of the au&t? 

A To the &st of my bowledge, it was 

continuing canplaints fran Intercoastal's custaners 

through -- I ' m  sorry; I've forgotten the attorney's 

name n o w .  

Q Mr. Tocmey? 

A Oh, yes, thmugh Mr. Toomey to the Board 

of Cbunty Camnissioners and their continuing belief 

that Intercoastal did not need the wastewater rate 
increase which it received fran the county in the 

latter part of 1998. 

There has already been one audit wfiich 

indicated that there was no over earnings, which I 

presume is the obvious focus of such audi ts .  

they didrift get the indication of over earnings that 

they wanted for the 1998 operations of Intercoastal, 

they wanted to cb it again for 1999. And tzhe County 

And when 
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camnission apparently acquiesced to that, 90 that's why 

the audit of 1999 is going on. 

Q Was there litigation involving that audit? 

Did Intercoastal take the County to court at all in 
connection with the audit? 

A Yes, I believe we did. But I hn't 

remember exactly what the litigation involved at the 

manent. I wwld have to go back and refresh ny m e w r y .  

MR. MELSON: Let's take about a 

five-minute break. 

( B r i e f  break. ) 

MR. ME": Are you folks on the phone 
ready to start again? 

MS. BROWNLGSS: Yes, we're ready. 

BY M R .  MBLSON: 

Q Mr. Forrester, cbes Intercoastal today 

have on-line the capacity to provide service to 13,392 

w a t e r  GRCs? 

A We have on-line the capacity to provide up 

to nine million gallons per day of ~ r "  daily flow. 

I'm not really sure how many thousands of ERCs that 

muld equate to. 

Q Well, yw cb analyeis, I believe you told 

us, of the n h r  of W C s  that Intercoastal has. 

How would you translate nine million 
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gallons of mcs? 
A Let me see. That's at m a x h t m  daily flow. 

I'm not really sure w h a t  factor has been used in 

conve&ing frcm &mum daily flow to average daily 
flow. Let me see if I can test that. 13,392. 

Bxcuse me; I have a realsitant nmputer 
here. Based on the factors that I have used, it looks 

like it canes cut to about 12,857. 

Q And what - -  
A But I'm not really sure hat factor has 

been used in the calculation of that maXirmrm daily 

flow. 

Q What factor &d you use for average daily 

flow? 

A I used 250, I think, or 2.5, p a r h  me. 

Q 2 . 5  what? 

A In other wrds - -  
Q What unit of measurement? 
A In other words, I ' m  &-ding nine null ion 

gallons per day by 2 . 5 ,  hich is normally the factor, 

or pardon me, 2.0. 

flow of 4,500,000, and then divichng that kqr 350 gives 

me 12, E57.14. 

That wwld give me an average daily 

Q A l l  right. Do yw recognize the n h r  

5,556 wastewater ERCs as representative of the capacity 
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of Intercoastal's treatment system? 

A 

just a manent -- 
Can I check sane other figures here for 

Q Certainly. 

A -- because I get a much larger n&r than 

that. The n h r  I get, based on rry best recollection 

of the per IZRC flow that I have calculated recently, i s  

7 ,246 .  

Q 

A By the ERC, average W C  flow based on our 

And hcw do you calculate that number? 

statistical analysis which canes out to h u t  200 

gallons per day per average ERC. 

Q 
A One nullion, five hundred thousand. 

Q 

h d  a treatment plant capacity of what? 

Do you h o w  how many connective water ERCs 

you have at the current time? 

A I think it i s  over 500,0000, but I can't 

remember exactly what nmber that is. 

Q 

A Rough terms, abut 4 , 0 0 0 .  

Q I wuld like to talk a little bit about 

what h u t  wastewater connective Wcs? 

Intercoastal's rate history with St. Johns County. 

How many f u l l  rate cases has Intercoastal 

had before St. Johns County? 

A When you say full rate cases, are you 

40 

talking h u t  for both water and wastewater? 

Q I'm talking about a revenue requirements 

rate case in which a rate of return is set or rates axe 

set, something other than a limited proceeding. 

A Well, other than a limited proceedmg, the 

d y  one I'm aware of is the one that was done in - -  
well, I think the final order was issued in 1990. 

Q And is that the rate case in wfiich the 

current authorized rate of return of sanething over 12 

percent was set? 

A To the kst of my knowledge, yes. 

Q What linuted proceedings have you had 
since that last full rate case? 

A The one in 1998 on the wastewater rate. 

Q kid what was the purpose of that limited 

p-eeding? 

A It was to establish structures that would 

cupensate Intercoastal for the ad&tion of a 

wastewater plant in the way of upgrades and actual 

expansion that resulted fran that upgrade. 

Q And did the order in that case contemplate 

that there m u l d  be another required full rate case 

filed at sane pint in the future? 
A If I remember correctly, I think that the 

final order f m  the bard of Financial Issuance 
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required that Intercoastal come back w i t h  a full rate 

case to r e e d n e  that rate. 

Q Were you present when I took Mr. Burton's 

deposition last week? 

A Yes. 

Q In his calculations of used and useful, he 

made use of hat he called imputed W C s  frua the 1998 

rate case and suggested that I might talk w z t h  you 

h t  hat imputed WCs are. 

Can you enlighten me? 

I honestly do not reinembex all of that  A 

rate case well enough to remember exactly how the 

subject of imputed WCs came into that case. 

n g h t  at the very end of the case, but I can't remember 

a l l  of the discussion about that. 

It was 

Q Do you recall hether, as a result of that 

case, the Water and Sewer Autlaority determined that 

p u r  wastewater treatment plant was not 100 percent 

used and useful? 

A To the best of my m e m r y ,  it was 100 

percent, or it was decided that it was 100 percent used 

and useful. 

Q DJ you laow whether the imputed WCs then 

equated to the  total capacity of the planned GRCs? 

A I really don't remember all of that 
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50  

discussion well emugh to be able to speak to it 

authon tatively - 
Q Do you expect to treat the wastewater 

plant as 100 percent used and useful in your upxmng 

rate filing? 

A Yes. 

Q Who is doing your used and useful analysis 

for that rate filing? 

A M r .  David Forter. 

Q And who 1s Mr. brter mth? 

A I don't remember the exact name of his 

firm. I think he IS an independent engineer. He is  

not associated with one of the larger engineering 

firms. I think he wrks by himself. 
Q Has Mr. Porter &ne used and useful 

analysis €or Intercoastal in the past? 

A No. 

Q when were service availability charges 

last set €or Intercoastal? 

A I presume that wuld have hen in our last 

full rate proceeding, the Final Order of which was 

issued in 1990, to the best of my recollection. 

Q D3 you know whether those servlce 

availability charges were designed to recover only 

costs of the plant  or the plant and lines? 
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A To the best of my knowledge, they were 

designed to cover the cost of the plant. 

think they were labeled as plant capacity charges. 
In fact, I 

Q Has Intercoastal ever filed for a rate 

decrease? 

A Requested a rate decrease? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A No, sir. 

Q Has any utility that you're a w e  of 

managed by Jax Utilities Management ever filed a 
request for a rate decrease? 

A Not to my recollection. I &n't think any 
of those utilities ever got large enough to achieve the 

econanies of scale that a rate decrease muld normally 

cane from. 

Q D>es Intercoastal routinely file for 

indexing and pass through rate adjustments? 

A I b o w  they have in the past filed those. 

1 can't say that that's routine. 

Q When was the last one filed, do you how? 
A I really Qn't  recall. 

Q 
an annual basis? 

D3 you )a-~cw if they typically are filed on 

A You mean consistently? 

Q I mean mre often than not. 

52 

A I really don't b o w .  I know that they 

have been filed for, but I can' t remember the frequency 

or &ether it's typical. 

Q Take the ten year period, 1990 to 2000, 

can you estimate for me how many pass -ugh 

adjustments were filed during that ten year period? 

A No, I cannot. 

Q YW would have been involved in any of 

those filings, though, wouldn' t you? 

A Not necessanly. 

Q A l l  nght. who else might have been 

iwlved? 

A Mrs. Tilley. 

Do you mean in terms of the preparation 

of -- 
Q I mean in terms of responsibility for the 

filing. 

A In terms of the responsibility, that  falls 

on Mr. James ultimately. 

Q And you're not typically inmlved in 
those? 

A bb, sir. 

Q What is the scope of YQUC day-to-day 

duties for Intercoastal? 
A C n  an general basis, my duties include t h e  
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management and handling of developer agreements and 

seeing those developer agreements thrcugh to 
conclusiofi. That is, in tenns of finishing the 

project, making sure that the project is properly 

documented for Intercoastal's acceptance, approving the 
permits and the certification of the systems for 

servlce through FDEP, statistical analyeis of the 

operations, handling of the management agreements, and 

generally assisting the opeations manager in the 

day-to-day management of the systems to canply mth 
regulations, and, in particular, t h e  reporting of the 
operations, all of the testing, the suknission of 

dscharge rnonitonng repas and rnonthly operating 

r e p ~ s .  And quite frankly, furnishing information to 

VZXLOUS agencies and other people who ask for that 

information about Inte-stal'e operations, and 

assisting Mr. James whenever he asks for my assistance 

in whatever projects he may be involved in. 

to custanem, customer cunplamts that generally 

get past the billing supervisors, respxdmg to 

cuetuner inquiries about Intercoastal's operations or 

generally about water and wastewater operations. 

have also done some data h s e  management work for the 

utility, designing and keeping those data bases, 

generally cirrulating m d  those areas. 

Responding 
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Q Are YMJ involved in decisions regarding 

filing of rate cases? 

A Yes. 

Q 
A You mean the decision to file -- 
Q Decision to file, yes, sir. 

A - -  a rate case? 

And what is p u r  role in those decisions? 

I guess the decision to actually file a 

rate case ultimately comes from Mr. James, and then I 
get to do the wrk. 

Q Have you ever recorranended that you file a 

rate case? 

recamendations as to the advisability of filing or not 

filing a ra te  case? 

Is it your responsibility to make 

A W t  generally, no. 
Q You mentioned an upcaning rate case. Tell 

me h a t  you h o w  about that. 

A hrelrything I b o w  b t  it? 

Q Well, let's start with what p u  consider 

to be the relevant pieces, and I 'll  follow up 

accordmgly. 

A Well, Intercoastal is presently preparing 
for  filing a rate case before St. Johns County, which, 

as I understand it, n11 be a general rate case filing 
to recover the costs of additional investment in the 
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water treatment plant and the increased operation and 

maintenance eqxnses aselated mth that, and also the 

increased operation and maintenance expense assaciated 

with the wastewater treatment plant expansion *ch was 

q l e t e d  in 1999. 

Q What test year will be used for the 

u e n g  rate case? 

A It is my understanding we're using the 

projected test year that ends as of Eecehr 31st, 

2001. 

Q 

A 

When is your rate filing due? 

I think the rate filing is due May 1st .  

but there was a sentence added to that, to the order 

establishing that date. which Intercoastal may have to 

request an extension in order to be able to file that 

case. 

Q Was that added to the order, or was that  

something cut"icated after the order was issued by 

your attorney to the county? 
A You mean added after the order was issued? 

Q Yes. I'm asking you do you recall the 
possibility of an extension expressly referred to in 

the order? 

A Seems like I do, yes. 

Q Okay. Do pi expect the filing to seek a 

5 6  

rate increase o r  a rate decrease? 

A I really don't h o w  yet because the MFRs 

have not been Tleted. 

Q When cb you expect the MFRs will be 
completed to the pint that you m l l  k n o w  whether 

you're going in for an increase or a reduction? 

A Well, I can' t answer that right now 

because that depen& on, to a great extent, the 

ccmpletion of the engineering investigations, which are 

not yet complete. Unfortunately, I haven't had a great 

deal of contact with that: in the past few weeks, 90 I'm 

not really sure. 

deadline if we make the deadline. 

We're going to be very close to that 

Q Have yau been a party to any discussions, 

or have you heard about any discussions h u t  the 

relationship in timng between the filing of that rate 

case and the hearing currently scheduled for May 7, a 
and 9 in the certificate extension kket? 

A Only to the extent that we're a l l  so busy 

working on this k k e t  here that we have a llmited 

m u n t  of time to put in on the rate case 

Q So if you were going to ask €or a 

continuance of one case or the other, you muld  ask for 

a continuance of the rate filing? 

A I don't think it's a matter of choosing 
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between the two. I would say that we may be forced to 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

ask for an extension of the rate fillng because we put 

in 90 much time on this case and we haven't had really 

enQugh time to prepare all of the MRFs. 
still going to try to make that May 1 date, to the best 

But we're 

of my howledge. 

Q When did Intertoastal originally file for 
approval of the test year for t h i s  rate case? 

A It seems like it was in Decerthr of '99. 

Q 

schedule for filing MFRs would have hen? 

Do you recall what your ongindl proposed 

A No. I really don' t recall right at the 

moment. 

Q Ea you recall that the request for test 
year approval was referred to the Division of 
A&unistrative H e d n g  in Tallahassee? 

A I remember that onginally, yes. 

Q Do you know Wtry Intercoastal requested a 

mtmuance of that test year approval decisicn? 

A Not right at the mrent, I hn't recall 

that. 

MR. WHARTON: Want me to tell you? 

MR. MELSON: Sure. 

MR. WHARTON: Because the hearing officer 

decided lust before it was supposed to go that 
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it was prcceblly goofy and that w e  were to 

subrut sane statements to her, which we did. 

&I I recall it, procedumlly, she d~dn't 
understand what kind of propsal it was. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q D3 you k n o w ,  at this pint, what used and 

useful methadology or methodologies are going to be 

used in the uprormng rate filing? 

A No, sir, because the engineering 

investigations are not complete. 

Q Do you now whether there is an intent: to 

use the connected W C  versus W C  capacity methdlclgy 

that M f .  Burton employed for his financial analysis? 

A In the rate case? 

Q Yes. 

A No, I really hn't. 

Q Is Mr. Burton participating in the 
u-ng rate case? 

A Mr. B u r t o n  is supposed to be involved to 

the extent of the rates, of making up the rate 

structue. And M r .  Burton is also supposed to contact 

the St. Johns River Water Management District and 

get their input on the possibility of instituting a 

water conservation rate. 

Q Is M r .  Burton going to be involved i n  the 

used and useful analysis in the rate case? 

A To the best of my bowledge, Mr. Porter 

has the responsibility for that. 

Q You may have answered this, and I honestly 

don't recall. 

obtaining financing for Jax Utilities C6rpomtion' 

Are you involved at all in the chain of 

A No, a i r .  

Q That would be Mr. James? 

A Y e s .  Well, Mr. James and/or Mr. Brannen. 

Q What is Mr. Brannen's title? 

A You mean L c L ~ ~  Intercoastal Utilities? 

Q Well, 1 guess w i t h  Intercoastal Utilities 

and then mth Jax Utilities Management. 

A He is the Vice President of Jax Utilities 

Management, but I really don't recall his title with 
respect to Intercoastal Utilities. 

on the 1999 Annudl Repa& that you have copies of 

there. 

I'm sure it's shown 

Q Is M r .  Brannen a stockholder of 

Intercosatal Utilities? 

A 

Q 

I believe he is a minority stockholder. 
Have yw ever been asked to estimate the 

Mlue that a certificate to serve west of the 

Intracoastal Waterday might have on the sale of 

Intercoastal Utilities? 
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A No, sir. 

Q I believe you told m e  p u r  present water 

treatment plant capacity is nine million MDF? 

A M a x l m u m  daily flow. 

Q Maximum daily f l o w ,  okay. 

And that represents on the order of 12,000 

plus ERCS? 

A Almost 13,000, yes. 

Q Okay. What - -  
A That's usmg nry calculations, which - -  
Q S u r e .  

A - -  may not be the same ones the engineers 

used. 

Q A t  build cut, what do you expect the 
demand, the water demand and WCs, to be in the 

territory that you're certificated to serve today? 

A We expct the water demand to be in the 

range of nine million gallons per day maximum daily 

flow. 

Q So the plant is essentially sized for 

build out of its present service territory? 

A That is my understanding, yes. 

Q who built the mst recent water treatment 

plant expansion? 

A It was built by Jax Utilities Management. 
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p Does Intercoastal or Jax Utilities 

Management get bids for the construction of facilities, 

or do they negotiate contacts which Jax Utilities 
Management puts in process? 

A Well, I think in the past, and I ' m  not 

really sure how it's been handled with the water 

treatment plant expansion, but I think in the past it 
has been pretty mch negotiated between Intercoastal 

and Jax Utilities. 

Q Ua you know who nwtiates on behalf of 

Intercmstal? 

A To the best of my knowledge, that wwld be 
Mr . James. 

Q lh you know wfio negotiates on behalf of 

Jax Utilities Management? 

A 

Q a d  h o  is that? Is he a relation to - -  
A He is Mr. H. R. James' son. H e ' s  

I think that would be Kelly Mike James. 

generally in charge of SUM construction prolects. 

Q D3es Mr. James hold an office nth Jax 

Utilities Management; is he an officer of the 

corporation? 

A Which Mr. James? 

Q Mr. H. R., Buddy James. 
A Yes. 
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Q What is his position With Jax Utilities 
Management ? 

A To the best of my howledge, he is the 

President. 

Q He is  the President, okay. 

And what is his son's psition w i t h  Jax 

Utilities Management? 

A I think he is a Vice hresident. 

Q Is he a dxect report to H. R. James? 
A I ' m  afraid you would have to talk to Mr. 

James abut that, H. R. James about that because I ' m  

not really sure who he really reports to, if indeed he 
does. 

Q Now I'm confused. 

Do you know to whun the ywnger James 

You're saying he may not report to anyone? 

A I ' m  saying that the younger Mr. James has 

r e p x t s ?  

a tendency to work pretty much on his own. 

Q Sort of like the senior Mr. James? 

A Well, they' re both very independent 

personalities. 

Q When was the mst recent water treatment 

plant expasion completed? 

A 

the end of 2000. 
I think it was substantially ccmplete at 

To the best of my howledge, the 
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certification of that has not been issued, but w e  did 

gain permission from FDEP to go ahead and put the plant 
on-line because of its wnfiguration. 

other way to cb it, 90 we have gotten permission from 

them to put The plant on-line, but I'm not sure that 

the financial certification has been issued. 

There was no 

Q What i s  the capacity of Intercoastal's 

wastewater treatment plant? 

A The average daily capacity of the 

wastewater plant is 1,5000,000 gallons per day, and 
it's permitted for that. 

Q Is it large enough to serve the build-out 

needs of the eastern semce t e m t o r y ?  

A To the best of my knowledge, it is based 

on the Wc flows that we are experiencing. 

Q 

A 

And hen was it recently expanded? 

I believe that mstruction was completed 

at the end of 1999. 

Q Was that plant also constructed by 3ax 

Utilities Management? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you knew &ether any construction has 

ever been performed -- since Intercoastal was acquired 
by its present owners, has any construction hen 
performed for Intercoastal by any party other than Y a x  
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Utilities Management? 

A I real ly  don't recall. When you say any 

construction, are yw including simply plant 

construction or any construction? 

Q Let me ask first: Has any plant 

construction been performed by anpne other than Jax 

Utilities Management? 

A I do not recall any plant construction 

that has been ccmpleted by anyone other than Jax 

Utilities Management. 

Nar, there has been construction of 

transmission systems that have been constructed by 

others, that is other construction companies that were 

retained by developers. 

Q 
A Or purchased by -- 
Q -- or purchased by? 
A -- Intercoastal Utilities. 
Q W i t h  regaxd to Intercoastal's P l a n  of 

And then donated to or contributed to -- 

Service to the western semce temtory, the area for 

which Intercoastal is seeking cenification in this 

pmeeding, is it fair to say that Intercoastal 

proposes to provlde an on-site water treatment plant in 

the western terntory? 

A I believe that's what the Conceptual 
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Master Plan contemplatee. When you say on-site, do you 1 

mean withm the certificated area? 2 

Q Within the certificated area. 3 

A That' s correct. 4 

Q Would the same be true for the wastewater 5 

treatment plant? 

A Within the certificated area, yes. 

Q Does Intercoastal propose to use 

groundwater to supplement reuse chcring the early years 

of the kcatee Development? 

A That has now becane a question. 

Originally, the Conceptual Master Plan anticipated the 

pssible use of grccndwater to supplement reuse, but 

that was based on sane rather high projections of reuse 

needs for golf courses by Matee Utility corporation. 
It appear3 that Mr. b u g  Miller in m e  of 

his - -  in one of his depositions has sort of backed off 
of that very high figure. 

testimony sanehere that that appears to possibly 

negate the necessity for use of groundwater as a 

supplement. 

And I think I put it in my 

At any rate, that supplement was supposed 

to be a relatively minor need and knxlld decline over 

approximately a three year penod to zero. 
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kscharges to the Tolomato River? 1 

A No, sir. 2 

Q b s  Intercoastal propose wet weather 
discharges to the Intracoastal Waterway? 

A Y e s ,  as a w e t  weather mscharge, if it is 

necessary. 

Q Are you familiar with the Developent 

order for the hatee mvelopnent issued by St. Johns 

county? 

A I am not intimately familiar with the 
Find Developent Order. 

Q Are you aware of whether the final 

Developent Order speaks to any requirements related to 

on or off-site facilities, treatment facilities? 

A If I remember correctly, acrording to a 
January 24th, 2001 letter f m  the Department of 

Corrrmunity Affairs, it indicates that the DCA asked for 

a condition stating that facilities would be lmzated 

off-site and be included ~n their Developent Order 

because if the facilities were going to be located 

on-site versus off-site, they wuld have wanted to 

asses hat impact, if any, that nught have. 

Q Do you h o w  whether a condition precluhng 

the use of on-site plans was included in the 

Development O r d e r  issued by St. Johns County? 
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A I have not actually seen the final 

Developnent Order. 

Q So you don't how? 

A So I assme, fran this, that it probably 

has been included in the hvelopnent Order. 
according to this same letter, if EO, it was included 

in the Developnent Order on that basis and, basically, 

because the developer was propsing that those 

facilities wuld be located off-site. 

And 

Q What is your understanding of the role of 

the Eqarbmnt of Gxmunity Affairs in the development 

of regional impact process? 

A 

Q 

They are one of the approving agencies. 

What is p u r  understanding of the mle of 

the Water Management District in the development of 
regional impact process? 

A I think they are one of the camenting 

agencies, if you w i l l .  

Q What i s  p u r  understanding of the role of 

local government in the DRI approval process? 

A I believe that they are the ones &o 

reconanend or make reronrmendations, I guess, on a D R I .  

Q 
A 

Q 

To the Depanment: of Cumunity Affairs? 

To the best of my knowledge. 

If the Developent Order for Nocatee 
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precludes the lccation of treatment plants an site, 

wuld you eqect that an amendtent to that Developent 
Order w l d  be required in order for Intercoastal to 

effectuate its Plan of Service? 

KR. WHARTON: Ob~ection as to form. 

THE WITNESS: I would expect the 

Department of carpnunity Affairs to ask that an 

amenhent be sutmitted. 

get frcm this letter. 

That's the impression I 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q And what were the circumstances under 

which that letter was written? 

A It was in response to a letter f m  M r .  

John Wharton to the Department of Carnnunity Affairs ,  

d i c h  was apparently written on January 23rd, 2001. 

Q 

A 

Lb you have a copy of that request letter) 

I chd not have that attached to my 

testinrony, and I really don't remember whether I 

brought with me a caw of his actual request letter. 

Q Could you make that available to us as a 

late filed exhibit to the deposition? 

A I ' m  sure we can. 

MR. "N: sure. 

MR. MELSON: We'll call that Exhibit No. 
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(The instrument last-above referred 1 
to was marked as Exhibit No. 2 for 
Identification.) 2 

BY MR. MELSON: 3 

Q In p u r  Direct Testimony, yw talked abwt 4 

5 

6 

Intercoastal's P l a n  of Service wil l  or will not  be 7 

the m a l  Sources First policy. 

Is it ybur understandxg that 

consistent n t h  that policy? 

A It is my understanding that Intemstal's 

Plan of Sernce rill he in conformance with that 

P311c1'. 
Q Is it your understanding that Nocatee 

utility Corporation's Plan of Senrice is or is not  

consistent w i t h  that policy? 

A It is try understanding that the intent of 

to provide water from a distant source in order to 

supply matee Utility Corporation wwld mat be in 
conformance mth that policy. 

Q D o  you h o w  whether the Water Management 

Distnct considers the provision of sedce by J'EA to 

be in conformance mth that policy? 

A I do not think that that determination has 

been made because I hubt senously that a consumptive 

use permit application addressing that situation has 

been forwarded to the St. Johns River Water Management 
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District. 

Q So yw don't b w  whether your v i e w  of the 
application of that policy does or does not conform 

mth Water Management District's interpretation of the 

policy? 

A Fnxn what I read in the District Water 
Supply Plan, there is considerable doubt in my mind as 

to Wether that JSA plan d d  conform w i t h  the kcal 

Sources First Policy. 

Q 
bly question is: 

interpretation of the Local Sources First policy is or  

is not consistent w i t h  the Water Management District's 

interpretation of that policy? 

I guess that wasn't quite my question. 

DO yw know whether or not your 

A I think that my interpretation of  the 

k a l  Sources First Folicy wuld be the same, that the 

St. Johns River Water Management District would apply 

to the suhission of that plan by m. 

Q So you believe that you and the district 
interpret the policy consistently? 

A I believe that the district w i l l  interpret 

the policy consistent with what I have said. 

Q Is that a yes? 

A Well, I'm not really sure how it ccmports 

mth your question, but I think I've answered it. 
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Q Well, I thought I had asked a yes or no 
question and I didn't hear a yes or no, so let me try 

one mre time. 

A All right. 

Q Is at your understanding that your 

interpretation of the h a 1  Sources First Policy is 

consistent With the St. Johns River Water Management 

District's interpretation of that policy? 
A I believe that it w i l l  be, yes. 

Q You also make reference in your Direct 

Testimony C o  a 1994 St. Johns County Master Plan. 

Can you tell me a little bit about what 

that Master P l a n  is? 

A It was a Master P l a n  for water and 

wastewater utilities that was made up by St. Johns 

county anticipating, you know, hat the County's future 

planning for water and wastewater service muld  be. 

Q As w e  sit here m Apnl of 2001, do yw 
h o w  whether the 1994 plan still represents the 

position of St. Johns County regarding the provision of 

water and wastewater service? 

A No. It sounds like they have changed 

their minds with respect to some portions of that plan. 

Q Y o u  also refer in your testimny to the 

St. Johns River Water Management District 2020 P l a n ;  is 

72 

that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q What do you believe that plan says about 

service by Intercoastal Utilities, if anything? 
A Well, first; of all, let's define what the 

2020 Plan is. The 2020 P l a n  started out as a needs and 

sources of eupply assessment. 

into a &ament called the Water 2020 Plan. 

of which I have is for - -  basically, 1 think i t ' s  b 

of the District Water Supply Plan. 

Plan has now becae part of the Distnct Water Supply 
Plan. 

Those assessments went 

The copy 

5 

And that Water 2020 

Basically, what I rememkr has hen 

consistently said throughout that plan is that 

Intercoastal Utilities should continue to use 

gxnundwater for its projected needs and that 

Intercoastal Utilities had a facilities deficit for its 

maximum daily demand. 

overcaning that facilities deficit with this recent 

water treatment plant expansion. 

And we are working towards 

Now, all of that was geared to 

Intercoastal's 20 year projection of water needs, so 

obviously Intercoastal cannot ccrrpletely resolve all of 

that maxim daily deficit with the current p e n d  

kcause if it did that obviously wuld not be used and 
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useful. It also addresses, that is Intercoastal's 

projection of needs, water needs, for the next 20 

years, also addresses the need for water outside o f  its 

existing certificate area. 

Therefore, the total gallcn-tage on which 

that decision was made, that it had a facility deficit, 

is for servlce that has not ccmrred as yet. 

Q Did the s e h c e  outside the territory, the 

estimates for senrice outside the temtory, include 

senrice to a13 the territory for wfiich Intercoastal is 

seek- a certificate in this case? 

A Yes. It included a 20-year projection for 

that territory. 

Q b e s  the inclusion of that pro~ection m 

the 2020 P l a n  confer on Intercoastal any legal rights 

to your knowledge? 

A %e legal nghts to what? 

Q Well, &es it confer any legal right to 

serve a particular temtory? 

A No. 

Q Does it confer any legal right to obtain a 

consumptive use p e m t  to sene a particular territory? 

A No. It was my understanding that by 

participating in the prpcless a future application for a 

consumptive use p m t  muld be facilitated. 
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Q 
A No, it was a voluntary process. 

Q 

Was the prccess a mandatory process? 

I ' m  going to show you a letter dated 

February 16th, 1998, and to t h e  back of it i s  stapled 

another letter dated December 4th, 1996. I believe 

this is a bmment that was used last week during t h e  

deposition of Ms. Silvers. 

Are you familiar mth this document? 
A Yes. 

Q Explain to me what you hlieve the letter 

to you fran the Water Management District tells the 

public Service Gnmussion that  should he of interest to 

it in this certificate proceeding. 

A Well, it tells me that the estirnatee that 

we made, that is Intercoastal made, as to its future 

prbble water servlce demands appear to be reasonable 

for this service area. That would include a l l  of the 

prqections that Intercoastal made for service to i t s  

exsting certificate area and a 20-year prqection for 

the area that it has applied for to this ccrranission. 

It also points out very pointedly that the 

&strict could not review an application €or a 

consumptive use p e m t  that has not been ceaificated 

to the applicant. In other wrds, that simply says 
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a certificate fram the Public Service carncission in 

order to be able to apply for a consumptive use pennit 

for that  area or an extension of its existing pemt. 

Q Or a certificate from St. Johns County for 

the St. Johns County prticn of the temtory. 

A Well, a certificate from sane -- hatever 
authority can issue that certificate. 

Q Other than Intercoastal, what other 

utilities &es Jax Utilities Management manage? 

A There are a n h r  of smaller water and 

wastewater plants that Jax Utilities has managed for 

various owners, but I ' m  not really sure nght at the 

"ent how many of those we have. 

We have been trylng to drop off mst of 

the d o u s  small systems that we've managed for other 

people. At the m e n t ,  the only other one that we are 

fully responsible for the operations and mgement of 

both water and wastewater, billing the customer, 

servicing, et cetera, is Fruit Cove Utilities. 

In the past -- we've got a long list of 
canpKlies that we have managed those types of 

operations for, including the City of Jacksonnlle. 
Q Is Fruit Cove Utilities owned by - -  is it 

affiliated at all vlth 3ax Utilities Management by 

ccnmon ownership? 
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A Fruit Cove Utilities is owned by -- I 
think it is called Fruit cove Properties, Inc., and 

T o p ,  Inc., and I believe that Mr. James is one of t he  

owners in that, but t h e  other owners are not, to the 

best of my knowledge, the same as Intercoastal. 

Q m, if I am correct, your application to 
the Public Servlce cormnission proposes to continue in 

effect the water rates and water service availability 

charges for Intercoastal that are in effect today; is 

that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Is the same true €or wastewater, that you 

w i l l  continue your existing wastewater rates and 

senice availability charges? 

A To the best of my knowledge, yes 

Q And is it also n y  understan&ng that the 

application does not propose establishment at this tlme 

of either a rate or service availability charge for 
reuse service? 

A I believe that i t  projected a reuse or a 

reclaimed water rate, but I ' m  not aware of a service 

availability charge that was proposed €or it. 

Q would you anticipate proposing, at some 

p i n t ,  a service anilability charge for reuse servjce? 

A I hn't think that was a consideration i n  
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the pmjections that were formulated by Mr. Burton. 

Q I guess nrf question wasn't what &d Mr. 
B u r t o n  project. My question was: Would you expect 

Intercoastal to propose, at sane point, a service 

availability charge for reuse? 

A No. Based on Mr. Burton's projections, I 
cb not anticipate that. 

Q Are you aware that on the wastewater side 

Mr. Burten's projections show, beginning in 2005 ,  ate 

decreases in four out of five years? 
A I am aware that it shows a decrease in 

Intercoastal's rates and that decrease continues on 

thugh 2009, if that's what you're refemng to. 

Q Well, are you farmliar with the fact that 

Mr. B u r t M l  put forth a so-called rate plan for water 

and a rate plan for wastewater? 

A Yes. 

Q And do you recall that Mr. Burton' s rate 
plan for wastewater involved rates decreasing 111 four 

out of five years beginning with the year 20057 

A I ' m  not really sure why you're saying four 

out of five years. The rate decreases, to the best of 

my knowledge, began in 2005. And if I remember 

correctly, the projection was through the year 2009, 

and decreases were projected for each of those years. . 

Q A l l  nght. So your recollection wuld 
have h e n  five out of - -  2005, 6 ,  7, 8 and 9 ,  five out 

of five years? 

A I believe that's true. 

Q All nght. In either event, whether it's 

f o u r  or five, and the document w i l l  ultimately speak 

for itself, is it your expectation that if gxanted the 

certificate Intercoastal would file with the F l o r i d a  

public Service comnission a rate decrease application 

in each of four or five successive years? 

A I doubt senously that it w d d  file a 

decrease application in each one of those five years. 

It would file to decrease its ra tes ,  perhaps 

respectively, in the year 2005 based on what the rate 

plan shows. 

Q And if Intercoastal were to do that, would 

it then eam less and generate less cash flow in each 

of the succeeding years that Mr. Burton has projected 

in h i s  analysis? 

A Well, we wouldn't -ct it based on that 

projection, that is to earn lese than hat the 

prolection shows. 

Q The application Intercoastal has filed in 

the case includes, d m s  it not, other property owned by 
DDI or related parties in D u n 1  and St. Johns County 
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bepnd the lxxlndaxies of the Watee Developnent? 

A I think it covers areas in St. Johns 

County, to the best of u y  memry, but not Duval. 

Q A l l  right. What is your understandmg of 

the need for service in those portions of your 
requested temtory lying outside of the Nocatee 

Developerit? 

A I m u l d  anticipate a need for s e m c e  in 
the m n g  years for those areas as an adjunct to the 

developnent of the Watee Developent. 

Q Were you present k n g  the first: 

deposition of Mr. Skelton taken last surmer? 

If you're refemng to the one that A 

occurred on July 25th of the year 200Q, yes. 

Q That must be the one. 

You were present at a depsition of Mr. 

Skelton on July 25th, 2000? 
A Y e s .  

Q Then that was the one. 

Do yw recall M r .  Skelton testifying that 

there is no need for service in the portlon of the 

territory m St. Johns County that is owned by DDI, 

that that is  not part of the matee Developent) 

A 

opinion. 

I r e m e m b e r  h i m  refemng to that as his 
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Q 
Ske 1 ton? 

Do you have any basis to disbelieve M I  

A I believe that Mr. Skelton is probably 

incorrect in his assumption that 'chat land w u l d  not be 
made available in the future by the Dams farmly 

because I honestly believe that the desirability of 

that land for developnent w i l l  increase considerably 

once the Watee Developnent gets underway, and I 

believe that eventually that land w i l l  be made 

available for developnent . 
Q Is it fair to say that i s  speculation on 

your part? 

A I. think it's fair to say that that's not a 

guarantee, but it's a very gad possibility because I 

believe that the Davis people or the Davis owners will 

eventually release that for developnent, just as they 

have n o w  released a l l  of the lands that are now being 

developed for Nocatee. 

Q I believe I asked Mr Bowen this morning 

w i t h  regard to the cash subsidies that are prolected in 

Mr. Burton's financial projections whether he had an 

understanding of whether those subsicLses would be 

provlded in the form of debt or equity. 

Ib you have any understanding, one way or 

the other, on that question? 
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A I tk not. 

Q Would M I .  James, perhaps, h o w  the answer 

to that? 

A I ' m  not really sure whether he has 

contemplated that or riot. 

Q What investment today does Intercoaetd 

have in transmission lines and collection systems? 

A 

Q Let me try again. 

Are  you asking for a dollar figure? 

As a matter of policy, does Intercoastal 

require all transmission and collection mains to be 

mntzlbuted by developers, or are there sane such mains 

in which it makes a utility investment? 

A There are some such maus in which it 

makes the utility investment. 

Q What determines which mains fall into the 

utility investment ca tqo ry?  

A ?"ne mains that are generdlly not or, 

pardon me, the mains that are generally sized in order 

to be able to serve future projects, or the mains wfi i ch  

have been configured such that they are not generally 

part of the developer's respnsibility. 

Q I believe you were present chrring Mr. 

Skelton' s deposition last week. 

Do you recall him indicating t h a t  m final 
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decision had been made as to whether Nocatee wuld be 

developed by a single developer or whether there might 
be multiple developers within tkcatee? 

A Well, first of all, I don't remember being 

present at M r .  Skelton's deposition. 

Q Okay. A l l  right. For purposes of Mr. 

Burton's analysis, has Intercoastal treated Wcatee as 

though it wuld be a single developnent by a single 

deve 1 oper ? 

A Yes. 

Q To the extent that there were multiple 

developers within Watee, wxld that change the 

assumptions that Intercoastal w u l d  make about the mix 

of invested versus contributor wise? 

A It could change Intercoastal's investment 

to the extent that some of those lines may be c c a "  to 

vanous developed sections, and that Intercoastal may 

have a need or a desire to invest in m e  of those . 

lines. So f a r  that hasn't been indicated to me. 

Q kt's fccus for a merit on your eastern 
semce  temtory. 

DJ you anticipate that a l l  future 

connections within thaf temtory will be only new 
lines, or is there some in-fill on existing lines chat 
remains to take place? 
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A I think to a great extent, the future 

grok.th will be as a result of in-fill and redevelopnt 
probably on existing lines. There are some areas h l c h  

may require sane new transmission systems, but they're 

relatively limited, in my opinion. 

MR. M-ON: Could we take about a ten 

minute break? 
MR. -TON: Sure. It's a good time to 

take me. 

(8nef break.) 

MR. MELSON: I've gone through TQ' notes, 

M. L. and I don't have anything else at ths 

time. Thank you. 

WIT"ESs: You're welcome. 

MR. MENION: Suzanne, do you have any 

questions? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes, I do. 

MR. M m N :  Do you want to go next? 

MS. BROWNLESS: I w i l l  be happy to go 

next. 

MR. MENIUN: Okay. 

CROSS - EXAM INATION 

BY MS. BROWLESS: 

Q Hello, M r .  Forrester. How are you? This 

is Suzanne Brpwnlese cm behalf of the Utility 

Department. 

A Hello, M S .  Brownless. 

Q If the connection here is p r  and you 

can't hear me, please let me b o w .  

A All right. 

p In yoyr original application, my 

understanding is that you applied to serve the Waldon 
chase sedce area; is that: correct? 

A Yes, in the original application. 

Q In the original application, &d you also 

apply to serve Marsh Harfar and Allen Nease High 

Schall? 

A I remernber the Marsh H d r  Developnent 

being -- or the area that was suppsed to be Marsh 

H h r  Eevelopent being included, yes. 

Q . And Allen Nease wuld be slightly south of 

Waldon Chase, that's where the Allen Nease High School 

is, right off of 2102 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. And was that included in your 

original abplication? 

A To the best of my howledge, that entire 

area was a part of Section H of o w  application, yes.  

Q I s a w  scme intensgatones in which Mr. 

Burton excluded Waldon Chase fran certain rate 
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calculations. 

Have you officially excluded W a l d c t - i  Chase 

service area from p u r  application? 

A Yes. I believe that we confirmed that in 

response to an interrogatory f ran the carsnission staff. 

Q 

A No, ma'am, that is not excluded. 

Q 

What about the Marsh H a r k o r  area? 

And what about the Allen Nease High Schwl  

area? 

A If the Allen Nease High School is still 

included in that Section H, no, ma'am, we d d  have 

not excluded that. 

Q Are you aware that the County is currently 

pruviding water and s e w e r  service to Allen Nease High 

Schaol? 

A No, I was not aware that the county is 

currently providing semce to Nease Hlgh School. 

Q In light of that fact, wuld your position 

change regardmg the Allen Nease High scl-1~01 area? 

A probably, it w l d .  

Q And when I say change, I mean w l d  you 
consider excludmg that from the temtory requested? 

A k l u d i n g  Allen Nease High S c b l  muld be 
appropriate, I think, if the county is already 

provihng sernce to it. 
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Q Mr. Nelson asked you sane questions about 

the rate case which you have been asked to file with 
St. Johns Water and Sewer Authority. 

Do you remember those questions? 

A I do not r e m e m b e r  the specific questions. 

I remember the line of questioning. 
Q Okay. And I believe you discussed mth 

him your  innlvement in that rate proceeding; is that 

correct? 

A Y e s ,  ma'am, I believe generally -- 
Q Okay. 

A - -  I did discuss that. 
Q The ates that you are proposing or will 

propse UI the St. Johns County case, cb those rates 

include or do you anticipate in that filing service to 
areas which are outsides p u r  existing authority 

servlce area? 

A No. 

Q If you are granted in this PSC proceeding 

the n g h t  to serve Nocatee, or the area that you have 

rquested, what impact w i l l  that have on your  filing 

before the authority? 

I 

A If ne are granted the application that we 

have filed before the public Sennce Camission, it is 

entirely pssible that we wwld w i t h d r a w  that rate 
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application. 

Q And what would be the racional for 

withdrawing your application? 

A Because our propsed Plan of Serslce would 

result in econanies of scale that would preclude the 

need for any additional rate. 

Q Would it be your position that if granted 

the certificate by the F l o r i d a  Public Sedce 

camnission you wxld no longer be regulated by St. 

Johns County? 

A If our application is approved as 
subnitted, we wxlld not be regulated by St. Johns 

county. 

Q And your position w d d  be that you would 

be regulated solely and entirely by the F l o r i d a  Public 

Service cormnission? 

A Yes. 

p This is the follow-up on sane questions 

asked by Mr. Melson. 
testimony yw filed and, unfortunately, I couldn't hear 
your answer, 80 it's my understanding that you filed 

Direct Testimony, Intervener Testirnoy, Rebuttal 

Testimny and what was the fourth piece? 

He went over the four pieces of 

A Supplemental Intenener Testimony. 

Q And that testimony was in respnse to 

88 

what, the Supplemental Intervener? 

A F ' r i d l y  in response to the Supplemental 

Direct Testimonies of Douglas Miller and Mrs. Deborah 

Swain. 

Q And part  of that wuld have been in 

responses to JF4 and its agreement, service agreement? 

A If yw wi l l  allow me just a m e n t  to 

review that. 

MR. WHARTON: Suzanne, when you say par t  

of that, 20 you mean part of that Supplemental 

Direct Testimy filed by Miller and Swain? 

MS. BRCWNLESS: Well, &d Mr Forrester 

respond to Swain and Miller's Supplemental 

Direct Testimony-concerning the JEA NUC 

agreement, to be more specific? 

TtIE WITNESS: I believe that they did, and 

1 believe that 1 &d make some cments relative 

to that agreement. 

BY MS. B R O W S S :  

Q 
A Yes, I did. 

Q 

D i d  you review the J E A  NUC agreement? 

And hat were the cments that you 

offered with regards to that agreement? 

A Well, I would have to go back through my 

Supplemental Intervener Testimony and tw to ferret 
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those out. 

Q Can you briefly d z e  it? 

MR. WllAKKlN: Are you asking what cORment3 

he made i n  the pref i led tes t imny? 

MS. BROWNLESS: Y e s .  What were the 

highlights of h i s  cunnerits? I f  he b o w s ,  t ha t ' s  

great; i f  he b s n ' t ,  that's a l l  r ight ,  too. 

WITNESS: W e l l ,  I think the question 

that  was posed to me was cb I have any concerns 

or caments regarding the new agreement between 

J6A and NWC. I d id  make those curnnents 

s t a r t i ng  on Page 6 ,  and I .believe that they were 

generally surroundmg the W plan f o r  service.  

MS. BROWNL&SS: Thank you. 

BY MS. BROWULGSS: 

Q DJ you have any additional comnents t~ 

make today, other than what you've prevlously testified 

to? 

A I think that  would be making additional 

testimsny, and I don' t think t h a t ' s  allowed a t  t h i s  

point, 1s it? 

Q Well, this is  j u s t  a depoeition, M r .  

Forrester. 

A No, I Qn' t have any ad&tional ccnnnents 

that I want to add r ight  at t h i s  time. 
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Q You were asked sane questions h u t  the 

water 2020 study by M r .  Melson. 

Do you remember those questions? 

A I r e m e m b e r  the l i n e  of questioning, yes, 

ma' am. 

Q Okay. And I think ypu referred to  a 

Distr ic t  Water Supply P l a n ?  

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Is t ha t  a document tha t  has been produced 

i n  this case, do you h? 

A That has been prcduced? 

Q Yes? In  other  words -- 
A I have made extensive references to it, 

but I don' t think that it' s - -  I t h n k  w e  allowed M r .  

Melson t o  look a t  t ha t  plan, but I'm not really sure 

that he asked f o r  a copy of it. 

MR. WHARMN: Is it a document tha t  you 

brought here today? 

7x6 "SS. Yes. 

MR. WHARlUN: In one of these many boxes 

that  are behind you? 

TH6 WITNESS: Yes. 

BY MS. BROWNLGSS: 

Q Is that  - -  t h i s  is the S t .  Johns Water 

What is the Management Distr ic t  Water Supply P l a n .  
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date on that, M r .  Forrester? 

A I f  you'll hold on for j u s t  a " i t ,  I ' l l  

take a l m k .  

Q Okay. 

A Suzanne, it only shows the year, and t h e  

year is 2000. 

Q Would tha t  be the t i t l e ,  2000 District  

Water Supply Plan? 

A No, the title is D i s t r i c t  Water Supply 

plan, and it is Special M l i c a t i o n  No. S32000-SP1. 

Q 

A That is correct.  

Q 

A Plan. 

That's S as i n  Sam and P as i n  Paul? 

So it 's Distr ic t  Water Supply -- 

Q -- Plan, SJZOOO-SPl? 
A Yes, ma'am. 

Q 

A Yes, ma'am. That's on the inside cover. 

%e date on it is 2000? 

It jus t  simply says 2000 a t  the hottan. 

Q khat do you understand the legal import of 

tha t  dxument i s ?  

MR. WHARTON: Object to  the form of the 

questicn. 

TK6 WITNESS: Well, I'm not real ly  sure of 

what the legal import is. It is my 

92 

understanding that it 1s a guidance dccument for 

the S t .  Johns River Water Management D i s t n c t  

and w i l l  be used i n  the d m t n c t ' s  continuing 

planning for water supplies = t h i n  the d i s t r i c t .  

MS. BROWNLGSS: Okay. Would you -- 
THE WITNESS: And possibly - -  

BY MS. BROhNLESS: 

Q %uld you consider this to be l ike any 

other planning dxrcrment subject t o  revisions? 

A Very defini te ly .  h d  I expect it t o  be 

revised according to its content mth in  the next five 

years. 

Q Okay. I f ,  f o r  example, a u t i l i t y  included 

projections i n  t h i s  cbcument tha t  was subsequently 

reneed, would you consider t ha t  to  be an impedxnent to 

securing a consumptive use permit i n  the future? 

A I'm not really sure I understand the 

question, Suzanne. 

Q Well, l e t  me break it up into little 

parts. My understanding is that  the water 2020 study 

data was included i n  t h i s  D i s t r i c t  Water Supply Plan; 

is that correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q Now, my understanding is that the water 

2020 supply data was provided by individual u t i l i t i e s  
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within the region; is that comect? 

A Yes, ma'am. a d  it waa reviewed by the 

St. Johns River Water Management District for 

reasonableness. 

Q And that each individual utility pranded 

its own estimate of its own projected needs; is that 

nght? 

A That is correct. 

Q W ,  t o  the extent that a utility enhances 

its surface temtory beyond hat it had in place at 

the time it provided data and, therefore, realizing 

that it has an enhanced water need, m l d  you expect 

that to present a problem when it went to get a 

consumptive use perrmt for that enhanced need? 

A No. I wxld expect the projections to be 

an advantage to it in going to apply for a consurnptive 

use pernut as long as the projections held true. 

Q Okay. So to the extent that the utility 

projected or asked for or projected needs assdciated 

Vith an area it ddn't currently have, that w w l d  a 

bonus as far as you' re wncemed? 

A I ' m  not really sure hat you m e a n  by the 
term bonus. 

Q Well, it would enhance its likelihcod of 

getting a consumptive use permit for that demand. 
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A It 1s my understandng that the 

participation in this Distnct Water Supply Plan muld 

te - -  muld facilitate a utility getting a consumptive 
use pernut for its projected volumes. 

Q Okay. B u t  is it your understanding that 

if you failed to make a projection, you wxld 
necessmly be denied a consumptive use p m t ?  

A 

true statement. I only how that if a utility has made 
reasonable projections and accurate projections that it 

will facilitate getting a permit. 

necessmly mean that if i t ' s  made a mistake in those 

projections that it wwld be penalized for those 

projections. 

I ' m  not really sure  that that muld be a 

It hsn't 

Q Okay. Thank you. 

You made reference to the 1994 St. Johns 

County Master Plan. 

A Yes. 

Q Is that the title of that da=ument, the 

ccmplete title? 

A If you n 1 1  hold on €or just a mat, I 

will pull the  dxment. 

Suzanne, it reads, Reprt St. Johns County, Flonda 

Water and Wastewater Master Plan, and i t  is dated 

October 1994. 

According to the front sheet, 
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Q I ' m  writing here, so R e p o r t  St. Johns 

Cwnty, Flo r ida  Water and Wastewater? 

A Yes, Water and Wastewater Master Plan. 

Q Do you h o w  whether there has been any 

revlsions t o  t h i s  Octohr 1994 doccmtent? 

A I wuld assume that there probably have 

hen revlsions to that plan. 

Q Do yw have a copy of any of those 

revisions if they exist? 

A 

Q Yes, sir. 

A 

Do I have a copy? 

I have a copy of a letter fran Camp, 
Dresser and McKee, Inc., to  Mr. H e r b e r t  Vandermark, 

manager of construction. 

they are changing sane of their positions that were 

stated and quoted by me in the Master Plan. 
particularly -- 

That letter indicates that 

More 

Q What is the date of that letter, sir? 

A September Ist, 1998. 

Q other than hatever changes or revisions 

are included in the Septenhr Ist, 1998 letter, are you 

aware of any others? 

A No, I am not. 

MR. BROWNLGSS: If you can give me just  a 

minute, I think I m y  be done, but just give me 

96 

a second. 

Thank you, Mr. Forrester. That's all I 

have. 

THE WITNESS: You're welcome. 

( X E S - F X A M I N X O I N  

BY MR MGNIIIN: 

Q Gad afternoon, Mr. Forrester. 

A GCod afternoon. 

Q I ' m  Stephen Menton an behalf of JEA. Sane 

of my areas.have alreacfy been covered. Mr. Melson has 

taken away m e  of my thunder. 
duplicate, but there be a little b i t  of overlap as we 

go through a couple of areas. 

I'll t r y  not to 

Earlier, you testified in response to m e  

questions frcm M r .  Melson abut sane conversations that 

you had with JXA, and I believe you referenced a 

memorandum fran January of 1998 regardmg those 
&scussion. 

you recall that? 
A Yes.  

Q Eo you recall that you were involved in 

subsequent discussions w i t h  JEL a b u t  the prospect of a 

wholesale arrangement by which J6?. d d  provide 

semce to Intercoastal for this area? 

A I ' m  not sure that I remember precisely my 
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conversations r e g h n g  wholesale service to the area 

that referred -- are you referring to the area that we 

designated as H? 
Q Well, let me get a little bit rmre 

specific . 
Do you recall that prior to the time of 

the proceeding before the St. Johns Cwnty Water and 

Sewer Authority that you and Mr. James contacted JEA 

and requested vhether JXA W d  be interested in 
entenng mto a wholesale arrangement? 

A 

Q 

January of 1999. 

Which wuld have been a follow-up to this. 

which w u l d  have been in appmxlmately 

A I don't remehr the exact dates. We did 

have sane discussions w i t h  \fsA subsequent to that 

relative t o  sehce to the entire area, but I d" t  

remedxr the substance of all of that. 

Q And cb you recall at that time that JEA 

indicated that it was not interested in pursuing a 

wholesale arrangement with htercoastal? 

A It is my understanding that JEA had or was 

contemplating signing the original letter of intent 

mth DDI, and for that reason that letter of intent 

would exclude any further cmversation with 

Intercoastal relative to providing wholesale service to 
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this Kea. 

Q So if I understand you correctly, then, 
you do recall that J E A  did tell htercoastal that it 

was not interested in pursuing a wholesale arrangement 

mth Intercoastal to provide service to this area? 

A Y e s .  

Q And have there been any subsequent 

indications that you're aware of where JEA has 

communicated that it's mlling to pursue a wholesale 

arrangement ath Intercoastal? 

A No, I'm not aware of any. 

Q You spoke with Mr. Melson regarding the 

h a 1  Sources First Policy. 

Do you recall sane of those questions? 

A I cbn't recall the questicms, I recall the 

line of questioning. 

Q Okay. And I th~nk you indicated that the 

bcal Sources F i r s t  Policy come mto play in connection 

w i t h  an application for a new consumptive use perrmt; 

correct? 

A I said that was where I would expect it to 

anse. 

Q Is there any other cirormstances in which 
the Local Sources First Policy wuld cane into play? 

A You mean With respect to JEA or with 
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respect - -  
Q W i t h  respect to J-EA providhg service 

this area. 

A It mght very well cane into question 

respect to JEA's plans to develop a new w e l l  field 

to 

wlth 

either in the north or the west district, &ichever one 

JI;A decides to eventually bring its water fran outside 

of St. Johns County. 

Q yxl know if XU has any plans to file 
an application fo r  a new well f i e l d  that vould bnng 

that issue into play? 

A I think TEA w a s  the one who indicated that 

they wuld bring that water either fran the north or 

from the west. 

require installation of a new well f i e l d  or new wells. 

And In that case, the question of the Lccal Sources 
First mlicy, I would expect to it to a n s e  at that 

time. 

And I would certainly expect that would 

Q So the Lbcal Sources First Policy would 

a n s e  at such time that 

€or a new well f ie ld;  correct? 

might make an application 

A 

Q Okay. Any other time that you're aware of 

I said I suspect that. 

where the kcal Sources First Policy would come into 

play? 
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A No, because the -a1 Sources First Policy 

generally w w l d  govern a plan or a proposal to b n n g  

water fran a distant area into St. Johns County. 

Q Have you renewed SEA'S consumptive use 

permit? 

A No, I have not. 

Q DZJ you bow &ether, in fact, JEA' s 

consumptive use permit includes water designated €or 

the northern St. Johns County area? 

A No. Not having renewed those pemts, I 
wuld not have that knowledge. 

Q If m ' s  consumptive use pemts include 

water allocated for the northern St. Johns County area, 

including the Nocatee Developnent, muld that m e a n  that 

the Lacal Sources First Policy would not be brought 

into play? 

A I don't think that is necessarily true. 

It might be the case, but I don't think it's 

necessanly true. 

Q If it's not necessarily true, w u l d  you 

explain to me how it would cane into play? 

A Because I doubt very seriously that those 

consumptive use permits extend for the period of time 

that is inmlved in providing service on a long-range 

basis to St. Johns m t y ,  so I would expect those 
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permits to have to either be rensed or for new permits 

to be issued. 

Q lb you h o w  what the current penmtted 
capacity for J6A's south grid is? 

A No. I only knw that in the District 

Water Supply P l a n  they inbcated that the greatest 

deficit  for the 2020 projections are in JEh's saath 

+d service area. 

Q Do you la-10~ whether those projections 

included areas in northern St.Johns County? 

A I ' m  not really sure what they included at 

that particular time. It only indicated that a ' s  

plan to resolve those deficit problems bms to bring 

water in frun the north or west area. 

In fact, I think that: they specifically 
cited the north area of Duval County, and that was one 

of the propsals that was being made to resolve their 

south &d deficit . 
Q Okay. So going back to the question 

though, if I understand p u r  answer you do not b o w  

hat areas were included by JEA in the determination of 
h t  needs wsuld be within the south g n d  area; 

correct? 

A No. 

Q And you & not know hat the current 
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permitted capacity for  SEA'S south gz5d is, do you? 

A No. I believe it was mentioned in Mr. 

Perkins' testimony, but I don't recall exactly what 
that was. 

Q And & you h o w  whether or not the current 
* 

d t m e n t  to JEA is with respect to t h i s  south g n d ,  

how they compare to hat the permitted capacity of the 

south gnd is? 

A No, I dono t .  

Q And if Mr. Perkins testifies that the 

pernutted capacity of JWL'S south gnd, in and of 

itsel€, has enough excess of capacity to meet the needs 

of the Nxatee Developnent for at least the first two 

to three phases, would you have any basis for 
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ksagreeinq with t ha t?  

A I would be surprised 

capacity - -  
Q Is that -- 
A - -  based on what the 

P l a n  said. 

15 

that it had that much 16 

17 

18 

Distnct Water Supply 19 

20 

Q You would be surprised because that muld 21 

be a lot of excess capacity; cnrrecc? 22 

w u l d  be a great deal of excess capacity. 

A Not only be a lot of excess - -  yes, it 23 

24  

Q And you don't have any basis for 25 

disagreeing with that, & you? 

A Only to the extent that the Distnct Water 
Supply P l a n  says that the JEA sou th  p d  has some 

sencus deficiencies it its water 2020 plan 

projections. 

Q Okay. And I believe you talked abut in 

your prefiled testimmy when you talked abut JEA's 

south grid wes, I think is what you called it. 

recall that? 
Do yau 

A Y e s .  

Q Okay. Andcexplain to me khat you mean by 

m ' s  south gxid m s .  

A If you will hand me back rrry copy of the 

District Water Supply Plan, I'll read it to you. 

Q Okay. 

A And I'm r e f e m n g  to Page 109 of the 

Distnct Water Supply Plan, under the section entitled 

JEA, it says, "The largest percentage of the 2020 needs 

and d e f i c i t s  in the hval County portion of wrk ymup 

area five occulg within a ' s  service area. JEA is 

developing a plan to meet this need and issued a Phase 

I Water Facilities Plan in August 1998. 

recamtends the phase out of certain facilities and the 

improvement or expansion of others. 

have most of the facilities required to meet its 

Thls plan 

J6A appears to 
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projected 2020 needs. However, the  projected needs are 

large enough to make the developing alternative sources 

potentially attractive b o t h  technically and 
financially. 

north g-nd portion of the J6A s y s t e m  and 

interconnection to the south g r i d  to convey the new 

supply, surface water supply fran the lower Tolomato 
bver and sea water &salting." 

options lnclude new well fields m the 

That same type of discussion is continued 
again on Page 111. 

Q Let me see if we can shortcut this a 

little bit. 

Is the entire basis for  your determination 

that JEA has south m d  m s ,  the Distnct Water Supply 

elan? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q And you have no independent basis for  

making a determination as to whether or  not JSA has 
woes in its south grid? 

A Well, other than the newspaper reports 

that I've read about the problems that they've had 

suppl+ng water in the Mandarin area. 

Q And those were related to the purchase of 

a utility, a p n v a t e  utility in Mandarin, is that 

currect, or do you h o w ?  
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A I ' m  not aware that they were related to 

the purchase of a private utility. 

Q Were these newspaper articles written by a 

hydrqeologist dio had information regarding what m ' s  

capacity to serve in that area was? 

A No. 

Q Okay. So the only basis -- 
A Not to my knowle%e. 

Q The only basis that you have are newspaper 
reports w r i t t e n  by non-scientists and h t ' s  in the 

District Water Supply Plan; correct? 

A That is correct. 
Q Okay. Now, the District Water Supply Plan 

talks about work group five; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And all of the discusdon that you just 

talked &ut is in connection with wrk group five; 

correct? 

A 

Q 

It is a l l  related to work grwp five. 

And work group five includes Northem St. 

Johns munty and Southem Duval bun ty ;  correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q And the wbrk group five area in the 
District Water Supply Plan is identified as a priority 

water use caution area; correct? 
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A To the hst of my knowledge, it is. 

Q So the entire area that you have requested 

in this application before the PSC is =thin a priority 

water use caution area; correct? 

A To the kst  of my knowledge, it is. 

Q And what is your understanding of what a 

priority water use caution area is? 

A It simply means that there may not be 

enough supply to go armmd if the projected growth of 
that area actually occuzg in the future, but it's not a 

conclusive statement. 

Q Okay. Now, the determination of whether 
or not there is a deficiency in the prqected needs, cb 

you h o w  how the d i s t r i c t  makes that determination? 

A It makes it baaed on the facilities and, 

also, based on the resources that are available. 

Q And in making their calculation as to h a t  

the projected deficit is w i t h  respect to any particular 

area, i s n ' t  it true that the district takes existing 

facilities and " p r e s  those to projected population 

growth? 

A I ' m  not really sure that.it uses 

population growth exclusively. 

case o f  the u t i l i t i e s ,  the Distnct Water Supply Plan 

uses the projected volume by the utilities. 

I think t h a t  in the 

I think 
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there is a whole section in the District Water Supply 

P l a n  that discusses that. 

Q Okay. So in -- 
A And they use the higher projections that 

were available from the utilities. 

Q So the district utilized the projections 

that the utilities gave them; correct? They used the 
projections that JEiA gave them? 

A 

Q 

I presume that  that's hat they &d. 

Do yw h o w  what prujections were given to 

the district by JEL? 
A I ' m  not familiar with the projections that 

they made. I'm familiar which - -  let me see, well, 
that's usual because Table 23 makes a projection of the 
needs for the year 2020 and subtotals those needs for 

St. Johns Ccunty, and JEA apparently did not submit any 

needs for St. J b s  County. 

However, JEA'e 2020 needs are included in 

the subtotal for mva1 County, and those needs 

indicated that they wuld have to have 43.3 million 

gallons per day in the year 2020, 45.90 and 2020 plus 
one in ten year drought. So, apparently, X A  gave no 

projections to the St. Johns Water Management D i s t r i c t  

for St. Johns County. 

Q Mf. Forrester, you don' t h o w  khat JEA 
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gave to the Water Management District i n  connection 

rnth the Water Supply Plan or in connection mth any of 

its consumptive use pernuts, & you? 

A Only to the extent that is reflected in 

the District Water Supply Plan. 

Q And you don't b o w  whether or not JEA's 

existing consumptive use permits include allocations 

€or areas =thin northern St. Johns County, L% you? 

A No, I do not. 

Q Now, Mr. Perkins in his prefiled Direct 

Testimony states on Page 6 ,  "That JE?i has the capacity 

to inrme&ately needed water and wastewater treatment 

facilities under both agreements through facilities 

currently owned and oprated by JEA. 

f i e l d s  h ich  supply JEA's south grid has sufficient 

capacity to provide semce" - -  oh, this is St Johns 

The existing well 

county. 

" a ' s  long term plans have amply 

anticipated grcwth in this area and include adhtional 

options as addtion demands arise. '' 

Do you know hat the status is of JEA's 

efforts to interconnect its nor th  and south gnds?  

A It is my understanding f ran  Mr. Perkins' 

and/or Mr. Kelly's testinwny that those plans to 

transfer water f m  the North DUval County or West 



109 111 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

ia 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

15 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

"1 county are in progress or in planning. 

Q Do you h o w  what the excess capacity that 
is available with m ' s  north grid is? 

A No, I &not. 

Q Cn Page 8 of Mr. Perkins' testimxly, he 
talks about the s w t h  grid. 
total pdtting capacity of 1 0 4 . 4  M G D  w i t h  the 
"utment to exlsting and future customers of 43.32 

M a .  " 

""e south g r i d  has 

That would indicate that the south grid 

has an excess capacity between d t m e n t s  and 

perrmttmg capacity of over 60  million gallons per day; 

is that correct? 

A That's what would be indicated by those 
figures you've given me, yes. 

Q Do you have -- would this indicate that 

J'Wi has water woes in the south gnd, if it has 60  

million excess capacity between what i t ' s  permitted for 

and what it's camutted to provlde? 

A Are we talking about the permitted 
capacity of the existing plants - -  

Q Uh-huh. 

A -- or are we talking about the permitted 
capacity of the existing source? 

Q We're talkhg about JEA's current capacity 
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for its existing plants. 

A Well, there is a considerable Fllfference 

betveen the capacity of the plants to be able to pump 
and treat and the capacity to be able to withdraw that 

resource frwn the ground. 

Q And what is - -  
A So I ' m  not really sure what ~ ' r e  talking 

about in term of permitting capacity. 
rrkrether the mechanics or the mechanical design of the 

plant is what you're referring to or whether the 

resource that they're going to tap for that plant is 

the - -  is going to be able to provide that excess 60 

millions gallons per day. 

I don't knm 

My impression that I get frun the District 

Water Supply P l a n  is that that resource is not 
sufficient. It said precisely, and I t h n k  I read it, 

that has the facilities to be able to meet that 

2020 demand, but having the facilities and having the 

resources ia a cunpletely separate matter. 

Q D3 you h o w  what J E A  has wrked cut with 

the Astrict in term of a safe yield for  its south 
grid? 

A No, I do not. 

Q Do you b o w  whether, m fact -- 
A I cb not have that knmledge. 
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Q -- whether JEA has reached a determination 

with the Water Management District  as to what the 

appropriate safe yleld capacity is for the south grid? 

A No. I would -- I cb not have that 
h l e d g e  and, quite frankly, I'm surprised that they 

have been able to mrk that out because the D i s t r i c t  

Water Supply Plan indicates that they do not have the 
information available for wrk p u p  area five to be 

able to deterrmne what a safe yleld capci ty  is in any 

of these areas and expect t o  be able to have that 

information at their next five year update. 

Q Well, now the work group area five i s  a 

much lager area than the area that JEA currently has 

well fields; isn't that correct? 

A Well, certamly it is. 

Q Do you krmw whether JE7i has done any 

studies that have determined what the appmpnate safe 

peld is for the ewth grid water plant? 

A I have not been made aware of any such 

statements. 

Q If JEA has conducted a study as to what 

the r e m e  W i l l  yleld with respect to the south grid,  

and that study indicates that there is - -  I ' m  not even 

going to go there. Let me b c k  up for a second. 

Does Intercoastal have any excess capacity 
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available within its water treatment plant to serve t he  

Nocatee Development? 

A My answer wuld have to be no because t he  

current water treatment gnd, water production grid, I 

should say, for Intercoastal Utilities has been sized 

for its existing service area. 

Q So -- 
A But then we are not proposing to utilize 

that particular grid in order to be able to serve 

Nocatee. 

Q 

We're propsing new facilities in that =ea. 

So in order for Intercoastal to serve the 

Nocatee Developent, it is going to have to develop new 

sources for the entire project; correct? 

A Yes, I believe that that's a very clear 

understanding that anybody wuld get from our 

Conceptual Master Plan. 

Q And M r .  Melson &sassed  tnth you earlier 
the provisions of the Development Orders that have been 

entered mth respect to the Nxatee DRI; do you 
remember that? 

A Yes. 

Q And you're aware that the Developnent 

Orders that have been entered prohibit new well flelds 

within the Nocatee Developnent; correct? 

A It is my understandng that the 
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Developnent O r d e r s  20. 

have not seen those. 

I have not been able to -- I 

Q Has Interoxstal made any amenhents or 

modifications e0 its Conceptual Master Plan to take 

into account the positions of Developnent orders? 
A No. 

Q Do you intend to dr> that prior to the 
hearing in this case? 

A No. 

Q S o  at this pint in time, t h e  Conceptual 

Master Plan that has been pmpsed by Intercoastal in 
this proceeding is inconsistent w i t h  the Developnent 

O r d e r s  that have been issued frcm the DRI; mrrect? 

A Tnat would be your interpretation of it, 
yes. 

Q 

A 

And hat is your interpretation of i L ?  

My interpretation is that Intercoastal 
Utilities proposes on-site facilities for the temtory 

that it has applied for for certification. 

Q And if, in fact, the developent cannot go 

forward with on-site utilities, is there a need for 

semce in your opinion? 

A Absolutely, there wxld be a need for 

service because I th~nk that the developent, the 

Nocatee Developnent, will go forward. And if 

Intercoastal Utilities is granted its application by 
the public Service M s i o n ,  there will be a need on 

the part of t he  developer to amend its Developnental 

Order. 

Q a0 y~ h o w  whether or not the developer 

will, in fact, be able to amend the Developental 

Order? 

A I think Develapnent Orders are mended on 

a continuous basis dl1 over the state of F l o n d a .  

Q Lm you k n o w  whether or not this particular 
Developnent Order could be amended to include on-site 

utilities? 

A 

Q 
based upon what? 

It 1s my understanding that it can be, 

It 1s your understanchng that it can he 

A Based u p  legal advice. 

Q So your attorney has told you that they 

could amend the Developnent Order, and therefore your 

Plan of Service is okay, f m  what I ' m  understanding? 

MR. WHARMN: I ' m  going to instrvct you 

not to answer anything your attomey has told 

YDU. 

BY MR. MENF3N: 

Q Do you have any basis for believing that 
Intercoastal's Conceptual Master Plan would be able to 
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serve this developnent other than hat your attorney 
has told you, in light of the pmnsions in the 

Developnent Orders  that we've talked b u t ?  

A I ' m  s~rry; w l d  you like to repeat that 

question? 

Q Other than what p u r  attorney has advised 

you, &I you have any baais for your psition that the 
Nocatee Developnent can go foxward with on-site 

utilities contrary to hat's in the Developnent Orders 

that have k e e n  considered? 

A It is my om personal understanding that 

the Developnent Orders can be amended in the event that 

Intercoastal Utilities is granted its application to 

provide for on-site facilities. 

Q The question was: b you have any basis, 

other than what you have heard f m  y o u  attorney, for 

that conclusion? 
A Gee, I thcught I answered the question. 

It i s  my own understanmng that the 

Development O r d e r  can be amended. 

Q But you have h e  no investigation on your 

own to determine whether or not this development can go 

forward in accordance mth the modifications that 
you're suggesting, other than talking to FLU- attomey? 

MS. BROWNLGSS: For those of us w h o  are 
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not there, was there a nod or are we still 

waiting for an answer? 

THE WITNESS: No, you're waiting for an 

answer. 

MS. BROhWLESS: Thank you. 

TSi6 WITN6SS: Based on the letter that was 

written to M r .  John wharton by Mr. Bob Cambry 

frnm the Department of camunity Affairs, it is 

n y  impression frcm that letter that the 

Developnent Order can be revlsited on the basis 
of utilities being pronded on-site to -tee 

because the developer was the one d-10 

represented in the ADA, that 1s the  Application 

for mvelopent pgproval, that the facilities 

would be located off-slte. 

not require the facilities to be located 

off-site and ekes not proffer an opinion 

regardmg on-site versus off-site. 

The department &d 

I think that is sufficient for me to 

strongly feel that the Developnent Order can be 

amended in order for the utilities to be 

on-site. 

BY MR. MENTUN: 

Q Is Intercoastal Utilities considered a 

regional utility? 
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A Yes. 

Q 
A 

And how do you define a regional utility? 

A regional utility serves an area which is 

reasonably large. 

services to all of the requesting parties within its 
area. 

It provides water and wastewater 

Q And hat is the curcent service area for 

Intercoastal Utilities? 

A You m e a n  in terms of acres? 

Q Yes. 

A Approxhately 4,500 acres. 

Q And, in your mind, what is the bmaking 
pint, you h o w ,  for a regional utility? How many 

acres constitutes a regional utility? 

A I would say that, in my mind, the 

difference between utilities - -  if you w a n t  to use a 

characterization, a regional utility serves a wide and 

&verse area of developent as opposed to a subdivision 
utility which pmvidee service only to one platted 

area. Typically, subdivisions tend to several 

hundred acres as opposed to several thousand acres, 90 

a regional utility serves an area to a region as 

opposed to a subdivision. 

Q In your opinion, are  the nunher of plants 

that a utility has relative to whether or not a 
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particular utility might be a regicmal utility or not? 

A I ' m  not sure that the n&r of plants has 

a particular h d n g  on it. 

case, it does happen to have two water treatment 

plants, water prduction plants, senring an 

interconnected grid, go if yxl cculd say that a l q e  

interconnected g r i d  servlng several thousand acres w i t h  

two plants is typical of regional service, as it is in 

t h e  case of 

interconnecting qnd, you might be able to make that 

type of charactenzation. 

B u t  in Intercoastal's 

mth multiple plants serving an 

Q &id how many wastewater plants b s  

Intercoastal have? 

A One. One subaqueous wastewater plant, 

which we hope sincerely that sane day we're going to be 

able to phase out if we are granted this certificate to 

serve this area. 

Q Let's talk abut that a little bit because 

I had a l i t t l e  bit of a hard time following your 
testimony. 

hether, in fact ,  Intercoastal wculd h= phasing out the 

current wastewater plant or whether it wuld not. 

I cwldn' t determine frun your testimny 

Can you tell me what are Intercoastal's 

intentions if it obtains the certificate with respect 

to its exlsting wastewater plant? 
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A Well, I thought I made i t  very clear that 

our future plans muld be to phase out that ensting 

S a q m s s  wastewater plant. In fact, I went into a g d  

deal of desczaption about the phasing out of that plant 

using the facilities that PBSM has designed for 

crossing the Intracoastal Waterway. 

Q Now,  if I understand p u r  testimony, the 

Conceptual Master Plan that p u  have put forward 

anticipates that Intercoastal muld irutially provide 

reuse service to batee fran its existing wastewater 

plant; is that cmrrect? 

A I ' m  s o q ;  you're going to have Go repeat 

that because I missed Something in it. 

Q HOW is Intercosatal golng to meet the 
initial reuse needs of the Nocatee Developnent? 

A By a canbination of reuse water f m  the 

east area and the wastewater that is generated within 

the Watee area, with the possibility that that wwld 

have to be supplemented initially by groundwater. 

Q Okay. So the initial plan, the lnitial 

P l a n  of Service would be to take reuse water frun 

Intercoastal's existing plant, transtrut it underneath 

the Intracoastal Waterway to the Nocatee Developnent to 

meet the reuse needs or to partially meet the reuse 

needs of hatee; correct? 
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A Correct. 

Q And then, at m e  point dDwn the lme, 
you're going to phase out p u r  exlsting wastewater 

Plant? 

A Those same facilities that would transfer 

the reclaimed water frun the east area, the eastern 

servlce area t o  the west area, muld  be converted to 

phase a t  the existing S a w s s  wastewater treatment 

plant. 

Q Okay. And 90 then yw w l d  cb another 
subaqueous connection to transmit the -- 

A No, we - -  i t  wuld ke the same subaqueous 

crossing. 

Q So you wuld use the reuse line that you 

put in place to transmit the sewer back to the new site 

on the west? 

A Y e s .  

Q 
at that point? 

A 

How axe you going to get reuse t o  Sawgrass 

I ' m  not really sure that reuse would be a 

necessity at that pint. 

Q Doesn't Intercoastal have a ccmrmtment to 

provide reuse to Sawgrass County C l u b ?  

A Yes, it cbes. 

Q Okay. So how are you going to get reuse 
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back to Sawgrass? 

A I ' m  not really sure that I have a 

understanding of the Conceptual Master Plan  in 

respect. 

clear 

that 

Q At hat point in time is Intercaastal 
going to phase out its current wastewater treatment 

plant? 

A I'm sorry; I really don't remember what 
time frame was indicated in the Conceptual Master P l a n  

for that. 

Q You spoke with Mr. Melaon about the 

cvrrent discharges that Intercoastal makes to the 

Intracoastal Watezway. And tha t  is the current site 

for hsposal of the excess effluent that isn't used for 

reuse; is that right? 

A If I understand p u r  question correctly, 

there i s  a current discharge to the Intraccasbl 

Waterway of excess reclaimed water. 
Q Uh-huh. 

A 

Q Right. 

Is that hat you're asking me -- 

A -- to -firm that? 

p Yes. 

A Yes. 

Q And that existing site would be the 

current ox, I mean, w x l d  be the location €or your wet 

weather discharge if the Conceptual Master P l a n  is 

approved? 

A In that general area, yes. 

Q And is that discharge now to an area that 

is designated as an outstanding flow of water? 
A No, it is not. 

Q So the current excess effluent that is 

generated by your wastewater plant is not being 
ascharged in that same flow of water? 

A No, it is not. It is being &scharged to 

the Intracoastal Waterway, which north of County Road 

210 Bridge is not designated, to the best of nry 

knowledge. 

Cordova, it's not designated as a Florida cutstanding 

water. 

And according to the testimony of Mr. 

Q Now, m y c ~ l r  prefiled Direct Testimny, 

you suhitted some ccrrrments with respect to the 

percentages of reuse that J E A  generates at its Mandarin 

plant. D3 you recall that? 

A In my Direct Testimony? I hn't remember 
that in my Direct Testimony. 

Q It nught have been y o u r  Intervener 

Tes timny . 
A I think it was in my Rebuttal. 
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Q In your prefiled testimony? 
A Try Page 6 of the Rebuttal. 

Q Okay. 

A Of ccurse, I ' m  not redly sure what part 

of tha t  you're concerned with. 

Q I'll just come back to that. 

Does Intercoastal m e n t l y  provlde 

residential reuse to its custanera? 

A No. 

Q Has Sax Utitilies Management or any of its 

canpnies, the utility companies that it has run, ever 

prumded residential reuse to any developnent? 
A Not that I recall. But then, neither has 

m. 
THZ WITNESS: Can we take akut a five 

minute break? 

KR. MFNION: S u r e ,  this wuld  be a g d  

time. 

(Brief break.) 

BY MR. MEWION: 

Q Has Intercoastal done any studxs as to 

the availability of water within the requested 

territory? 

A Intercoastal has not, in and of itself, 

We have cardssioned any stu&es for that purpose. 
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requested that P B S M ,  our engineers, renew the Nocatee 

Board of Resources P l a n  t o  see if it is a reasonable 

depiction of the anilability of water resources in 
that area. 

Q Do you h o w  whether PBSU has talked with 

the group that performed the study for bcatee? 

A I ' m  not really sure who they have talked 

to. 

of the water resource availability in that area and 
that they are convinced that Intercoastal's Plan of 

Service can be carried out mth respect to water. 

They have told us that it is a reasonable picture 

Q Has PBS&J done any analysis of ptential 

sites for well fields in the kcatee  Development? 

A I &ink you would have to talk to Jim 

I ' m  not really sure as to j u s t  Miller abut that. 

exactly what they have in nund in terms of well sites. 

They have obvlously &ne sune work on that because well 

sites are included in Lhe Conceptual Master Plan 

schedules. 

Q Do you know if there are any water quality 

issue9 with respect to groundwater i n  the area that 

you've requested? 

A To the hest of my om knowledge, based on 

my own reading of the groundwater resource study, there 

aren't any quality issues mth respect to the water 
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that is underneath that area. There is sane indication 

that water west of US-I and possibly south of that area 

has sane sulfate problems, and to the southeast there 

are possibly sane chloride pmblems, but the water in 

that particular area appears to meet, yw h o w ,  

virtually all of the standards for drinking water. 

Q 
u p m  the 

A 

District 

of water 

the same 

the west 

Q 

And p u r  conclusion, is that based solely 

study that was d s s i o n e d  by -tee? 

If I remember correctly, I think the 

Water Supply P l a n  also discusses the quality 

in St. Johns County and arrives at sanewhat 

ccnclusion, that there are sulfate problems to 

and chloride pmblems to the sautheast. 

Well, isn't it true that the Distnct 

Water supply Plan advised that i n  order for any w e l l  to 

be developed UI this priority water use caution area 

there needs to be strong well monitoring programs in 

place? 

A Yes. I think that we, and I think I put 
it in my testimony somewhere, that w e  intended to cb 

exactly that same thing. 

Q Okay. And the reasoning €or the well 

mnitoring program is because the water quality vanes  

significantly thughout this area; is that right? 

A I don't think it varies that significantly 
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mthm the area that we have applied to certificate. 

It varies widely over the hole work group area five, 

b u t  not in the particular area that we're seeking to 

certificate. 

Q Do you h o w  where you U d  site well 

fields for the Nocatee Developent? 

A Ns, sir. That would be part of PBS6,J's 

responsibility to site the well fields. 
Q And how is Intercoastal going to come into 

ownership of the well field sites? 

A 

Q Okay. And who wmld it purchase them 

It muld purchase those well field sites. 

fran? 

A From the owner, the land Owner. 

Q Okay. And w u l d  that be the aame With 

respect to the sites for the wastewater plant that you 
intend to - -  

A IC wuld be true of any or all of the 
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sites, water, wastewater and well fields. 19 

Q Do you k n o w  whether the developer would 20 

agree to siting a well field on its pruperty that would 
pronde semce to areas east of the Intercoastal? 

21 

22 

A I ' m  sow; repeat that again. 23 

Q D3 you how whether or not the developer 24 

w u l d  agree to siting a wastewater plant on his 25 

property that would provide service to areas east of 

the Intercoastal? 

A I ' m  not really sure that the property 

owner n l d  have a voice in hat the property was used 

for. He xmld have a voice in what the property would 
bnng in terms of a sale. 

Q In ywr q n e n c e ,  do developers 

typically have concerns about the size and the nature 

of the wastewater treatment plants that might go on to 

property adjoining the areas they're developing? 
I think that they would probably be A 

concerned, you h o w ,  if it was the type of plant that 

had hen built, say, 30 years ago. Today, I doubt 

seriously that that would be a consideration because of 

the techniques that we can now use to b e r m  around those 

plants and literally hide the fact thar they even 
exist, much less the designs that we can use today to 

make them ccmpatible with the surrounding r0mrmnit.y. 

Q So do you have - -  the current customers of 

your Intercoastal plant, have they welcaned you with 

open anns in terms of the expansion that you recently 

made to your wastewater treatment plant? 
A Have they welcaned us mth open arms? 

That plant has been there since, to the best of rrry 

howledge, 1974, &fore Intercoastal ever bought it. 

?he site was already there. 

Q Were your existing customers concerned 

when they learned about  the expansion plans for p u r  

existing site? 

A Yes. 

Q And did they, in fact, oblect to the 

e-sion plans? 

A Yes, which is one of the reasons w e  would 

like to eventually phase that plant out. 

Q On Page 10 of your Intervener Testimony, 

you talk h u t  how DDI has agreed to provlde JEA with 

b t h  water plant and well sites. 

and 16. 

This is on Line 13 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And specifically, I guess beginning an 

Line 11, you say, "Intercoastal plans for regional 

water facilities in the proposed serrnce area present 

no reasonably quantifiable disadvantage to its 
environmental resources. I believe that same lack of 

environmental resource irrpact is why DDI has agreed to 

provide JD, m t h  bth water and well sites." 

A "Water plant and well sites. 

Q "Water plant and well sites. I' 

In fact, now JEA is not going to s i te  

water plants or wastewater plants in the tkcatee 
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Developent; correct? 

A 

Service. 

Q 

That is my understanding of a ' s  Plan of 

So there is a difference in the P l a n  of 

Sersice now in terms of whether or not there is a 

quantifiable advantage or &sadvantage to the 

environmental remurces; isn't that right? 

MR. WHARTON: Object to the form. 

THE ": 1 bn't think that it's 

saying that there was no reasonably quantifiable 

disad-mntage based on those prior plans 

necessarily means that there is a quantifiable 

disadvantage at this point. 

I ' m  not really sure I said that correctly. 
MR. M W I ' C "  I was t-q to figure it 

out. 

BY MR. MENKlN: 

Q On that same page on Line 20, you talk 

about state-of-the-art water p&ction facilities in 

the same area which W i l l  include a well water quality 

and quantity canputer nrxlltonng and control system. 

Do you have such a system on your current 

plant? 

A There is a mnitoring system on the wells 

at the present time, but I ' m  not really sure that I ' m  
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qualified to discuss exactly what it b s .  

that there are mre sophisticated systems than we have 

now tnth the supervisory control and data acquisition 

systems or SCADA systems that would be mre appropriate 

to institute in a large area such as t h i s  and then to 

expnd those systems once they are acquired and in 

operation back to the eesting systems in the east 

service area. 

I only h o w  

Q Okay. So if I understand your testimny 

then, with respect to the new wells that you Will 

provide at the Nocatee kvlopnent you're going to use a 

new or different canputer monitoring Bystem than what 

you currently have in place at ymx existing plant? 

A I think that's a fair evaluation, yes. 

Q And then yw talk abut a system that is 

going to be coupled w i t h  an autmted reading system. 

Do you have such an automated meter 

readmg system in your current service area? 

A No, we cb not. 

Q Now, on Page 11 of your testimny on Line 

4 ,  you talk about, "The eventual interconnection of 
these new water facilities with the existing 

Intercoastal water system mll  increase the flexibility 

of Intercoastal's controls over resource utilization." 

Now, are p u  going to interconnect the new 
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water facilities mth the old ones, or are you going to 
phase the old ones out? 

A No. We plan to interconnect the water 

facilities. 

Q The water, but not the wastewater? 

A But not the wastewater; the wastewater, we 

hope to phase out. 

Q Okay. 
A It *;ould be far mre advantageous to 

maintain the existing production facilities in order to 

be able to spread o u t  the demand for water as it's 

nthdrawn fran the aquifer. 

Q And then you go on to say that, "The new 
plans will he designed to become an integral par t  of 

the region's mviromnmtal focus accmndatlng public 

tours to serve as part of the m d e d  public water 

conservation ehcation p r q " .  It 

lb you give tours at your current plant? 

A Yes. 

Q You do? 

A Yes. 

Q And-- 

A Particularly to the Customers who 

regularly visit the plant. 

Q And is this part of the ongoing 

13 2 

educational pxcgram of the environmental resources? 

A Does it educate our customers, yes. 

Q Okay. So p u r  SawgLass customers come out 

and get public b u r s  on a regular basis? 

A L e t  me put it this way, they visit the 

plant on a regular basis, and our policy is to give 

them a tour whenever they come. 

necessary to organize such t o u r s  because they visit on 

such a regular basis. 

We have not found it 

Q Then and Page 13 of p u r  testimmy, you 
talk about how your new Plan of Serrice w i l l  prornote 

camunity pride in the utilities efforts. 

Has there been a lot of camunity pnde in 

the Interccestal facility f m  the Saqrass  Home 

m e r '  s Association? 

A There is now mth the cunpleted wastewater 

treatment facility. 

have come by there have cmented very positively on 

those facilities. 

A number of the custuners that 

p And isn't it true that you have had a 

continuing battle with the hune owner's association 

over the last four or five years regaxhng &r 

problem at that facility? 

A I & n i t  know that there is a continuing 

battle over odors because there are no significant odor 
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cwnplaints being registered against that plant now. 1 

And, in fact, we have gotten a couple of c d c a t i o n s  2 

€run FDBP that their odor complaints have dwindled to- 3 

almst zem.  4 

Q Okay. And the question -- 5 

A They, themselves, have cune by there w i t h  

their plant inspectors and verified to us that they do 

not consider that to he an &r problem anynmre. 

Q And the question - -  anymore is hat you 

say; the question was related to the period in the last 

four to five years. Has that plant been a source -- 
A Yes. 

Q 
local ca"ty? 

-- of significant canplaints fran the 

A Yes, it has. 

Q Page 15, yw indicate that you believe 

that the sale of NUC to JEA is a real possibility. 

What is the basis for your contention? 
I'm going to have to stop and ask a A 

question of iy attorney because the basis of my - -  
MR. WHAKIDN: What was the question, 

please? 

MR. MK"QN: His testimxry on Page 15 

says, "Do ycu consider the sale of NUC to JEA a 
real possibility?" And then he goes on and 
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answers that essentially he b s .  

He says, "The tbcuments I have reviewed 
raised such a sale f r a n  a level of possibility 

to one of high pmhbility, at lease with 

respect to the intent of the Nocatee 

Developnent." 

THE KtTNIiSS: And, of course, what I base 
that on is confidential &cuments and I'm not 

really sure how I can discuss those. 

MR. WHARTON: Steve, I'm going to 

instruct h i m  not to answer at this point based 
on the fact that the information that he based 

that on at that time - -  was this the f i r s t  round 

of his testimny? 

MR. M E W K "  Yes. 

MR. WHARTON: - -  were dxuments that have 
not been exchanged in this proceeding or 

othemse cane to light. 

MR. MENION: Let's go off the record. 

(Brief &scussion off the record.) 

BY MR. MENION: 

Q On Page 17 of your testimy, you include 

in your discussion about the possibility of renewing a 

contract with J6& for the purpose of ewluating 

tholesale services if p u r  application is approved. 
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And then you go on and talk about how there is a no 

assurance that the present cost of m ' s  wholesale 

semce can be maintamed. 

WhaL is your understanding as to how 

Water Will be paid for wholesale services fran a? 
A Well, it' s my understanding that they' re 

not actually purchasing servlce wholesale, per say, 
that a will eesentidly be pmndmg service hrectly 

to the custmexs t h g h  NUC lines, and NUC would be 

Paying JEA a percentage of their revenues or, parQn 

me, because JEA is going to handle all of the money and 

all of the billings and all of the senricing and 
everything else, they would be retaining a certain 

percentage. 

Q Now, I understand that at the time you 
filed your initial Intervener Tescimxly at that time 

the details of the agreement between JEA and DDI and 

Nocatee or NUC were not fully how at that period. 

Your prefiled testimny, prefiled 

Intervener Testimony raised a number of concerns 

regarding the pssible fluctuation in the rates that  

d d  be charged to NUC frrm JEA. 

In view of the agreement that now has been 

reached between JE?i and NUC, cb you still have those 

concerns? 

136 

A I klieve I would continue to have those 

concerns because eventually a is going to have to 
either raise its retail rates or take a bigger bite of 

the hatee revenues a t  m e  pint in time in the 

future. So no matter how you slice the cake, Nocatee 

Utilities costs are going to rise at some point in 

future in my opinion. 

Q In your opinion, havlng reviewed the 

agreement, how would NUC's rates raise? How would the 

increase of N C ' s  rates cune about? 

A Through additional costs in JEA's 
provisional sernces to Watee. In other wrds, NUC's 

rates will be affected by its costs and its costs are 
contmlled by ITEiA. 

Q Does the agreement allow for JEA to pass 

on those ad&tional costs, or any ad&tional costs 

associated Lnth providing service, to this area to NUC? 

A I f  I r e m e m b e r  correctly, JEA normally 

guarantees the cost of its senrice for,,what is it, 

three years, if I remember correctly. I wuld have to 

go back and renew the agreement and exactly what it 

says in that particular area, but trry impression was 

that matee Utilities costs were effectively only 

guaranteed for approximately three years. 

Q Okay. At this pint in time, as we s i t  
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here now less than a mnth away from the hearing, you 
have seen the agreement between JEA and NUC and the 

concerns that you have regardmg the potential rate 

increases €or NUC customers a r e  based upon the fact 

that your understanding is that J5L had only agreed to 
hold its rates firm for three years? 

A I think I tried to pint: out that NUC's 
rates are affected by m ' s  costs as they are passed 

along to NUC. 

other costs that w i l l  affect its own rates. 

That is not to say that NUC bsn't have 

Q Okay. I just want to focus on that 

prtion of NUC rates that are based upn service from 

TEA. 

reg&ng concerns that you have about how JXA might be 

able to increase its costs and that wuld be passed 
along to NUC custaners. 

understand is how in V i e w  of the agreement that now has 

been reached whether or not p u  still have those 

concerns and if so why? 

Your initial testimony raised a number of issues 

. 

And what I ' m  tryjng t o  

A Well, I still have those same concerns for 

all of the reasons that any other utility m l d  have 

concerns. Let me put Intercoastal in the shoes of NUC. 
It's entirely possible that, at some point in time, in 

fact, it's almost assured that at sane pint in time, 

JEA is going to have to invest considerably in capital 
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improvement both at the MandKin Wastewater Plant and 1 

its other water p d c t i o n  facilities, particularly in 
terms of t h i s  very large main that they're talking 

about running from the north side or frcm the west 

side. And typically, those capital investments have 

some upward or exert sane upward pressure on rates. 

Q Have you -- 
A And as you buy new facilities, those new 

facilities also increase your operations costs, so all 

of those factors m i n e d  make me feel that JEA ~ n l l  
have to increase its rates. 

Q 
capital budget? 

Have you ever done an analysis of m ' s  

A No, I have not. 

Q Do you h o w  whether or not the 

improvements to the Mandarin plant have already heen 

factored into JEA's capital budget? 

A No, I have seen no indcation of that. 

Q Eo you k n o w  whether or not the 
interconnection &tween the north and south bridge had 

already h e n  planned and i n  m ' s  capital budget? 

A No, I haven't seen any indication of that. 

Q D3 you know what additional facilities 

WI-11 need to construct in order to provide service to 

the northern St. Johns area? 
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A A r e  you talking abut in terms of water? 

Q Water or wastewater. 

A Well, I h o w  that they're going t o  have to 

expand the Mandarin Wastewater Plant if all of that 

waste continues to go to M a n e n .  

they're gong to have to spend, according to the 

District Water Supply Plan, approximately forty million 

dollars in order to be able to b n n g  this new line f m  

either the north or the west in order to be able to 

bring all of that water into S t .  John's County. Even 

for a, those are fairly sizable investments, and I ' m  

sure they're going to impact, sanehow, their xates. I 

Qubt very seriously that  a can continue to absorf, 

all of that capital in addition to all of the 
infrastncture expenditure8 that it's making now. 

I also h o w  that 

Q Do you know if those capital wtlays, 

including the interconnection and the improvements t o  

the Mandarin plant have been planned to be incurred by 

JEA irrespective of whether or not this temtory is 

certificated to Watee? 

A I do not h o w  that. 

Q Is it understanding that JEA, under 

its agreement with NUC, K i l l  be charging a - -  will have 
the flexibility to charge rates for katee differently 

than it charges its customers in D u n 1  County? 

14 0 

Wuld you like me to rephrase that one? 

A That sounds like one of my answers. Yes, 

let's txy rephrasing that. 

Q Well, under the agreement between JEA and 

NUC, &es SEFL have the ability to charge or increase 
rates for W C  without also  changing rates to a l l  of its 

customers in Duval County? 

A I have not tried to evaluate that In my 

reading of the agreement. 
Q We spoke a minute ago a b u t  the M a n d a r i n  

plant. b you know &ether or not the J€A Mandarin 

plant was actually designed mth expansion in mind? 

A It is my understanding that it was 

designed mth expansion in mind. 

Q And in your experience in the utility 
business, cbes the expansion of an existing plant that 

has been designed specifically to be enlarged, is that 

less expensive than building a new plant? 

A If we're talking about a theoretical 
situation, the answer muld be yes. But,  of course, 

simply saying that a plant has been designed fox f u t u r e  

expansion hsn't necessmly get into the engineenng 

aspects of the design itself. 

is lust  simply land there for that purpose. 
typically, I t h ink  the answer to your question is yes, 

I t  may mean that there 

But, 
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wst of the t i m e  i t 's  much eas i e r  and much more 

e c o n d c a l  t o  expand the plant than it is t o  go out and 

build a whole new one. 

that  w i t h  the SaxJrass plant.  

That is precisely why we did 

Q Okay. 
A And, i n  f a c t ,  t ha t  was particularly 

eccffKmical to do it that way. 

Q On Page 20 of your  Intervener Testimny, 

you s t a t e  here that  from a u t i l i t y  s t a n m i n t  m a t e e  

wuld  hecane a "1 m t y  plant .  

B you know whether or not JSi actually 

serves custaners r e t a i l  i n  St .  Johns County a t  this 

pint i n  t i m e ?  

A To the best  of my howledge, they serve 

the Julington Creek area.  

Q So JEA alreaw has r e t a i l  custaners i n  S t .  

Johns county? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you h o w  h a t  XA's policy is with 
respect t o  contributing f a c i l i t i e s ?  

A To the best  of my howledge, has not 

changed its plicy w i t h  respect t o  contributing 

f a c i l i t i e s .  .I sti l l  expect t ha t  JEA, l ike mst other 

u t i l i t i e s ,  requires developers to cantribute the 

f a c i l i t i e s  t ha t  they construct fo r  service to the i r  own 

developnent. 

Q Is it your understanding that the 

agreement that J6A has entered into m t h  NUC is 

&fferent than t ha t  m ' s  normal policy is  w i t h  respect 

t o  contributing f a c i l i t i e s ?  

A Sure sounds different .  

Q Okay. And how is it different i n  your 

opinion? 

A Well, i t ' s  different  t o  the extent that 

those f a c i l i t i e s  are not being constructed by the 

developer and contributed to  JEA for service t o  the 

r e t a i l  custaners. 

Q What f a c i l i t i e s ?  

A Water distnbutian, sewage collection, 

sewage pumping s t a t i m s ,  all of the associated 

perhnencies that  go along with it. 

Q How much t e m t o r y  is in your application 

that is owned by DDI that  is  not part of m a t e e ,  do 

you h o w ?  

A I n  terms of acres? 

Q Yes. 

A I'm not r ea l ly  sure I h o w  the answer t o  

that question. 

the n&r of acres for me. 

I w u l d  have to  get PBSW t o  calculate 

Q b u l d  it be the same as the amsunt of 
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acreage t ha t  was i n  excess b n g  the S t .  Johns County 

Water and Sewer Authonty pmeeding? 

A No. I think there has been scme 

amendnents to the area. If  I remember correctly, when 

we applied t o  the S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer 

Authonty we had included a southern part of the area. 

And I'm not real ly  sure h a t  that acreage was, but it 

covered, I think, part of the Marshall Creek 

Developnent, and then we amended that out.  

I guess my best guess a t  this mtment is 

that  it would be the mfference between 23,000 acres 

and the 1 5 , 0 0 0  that the m a t e e  Developent takes up, 

so i t ' s  i n  the range of b u t  seven to  eight thousand 

acres. 

Q The question I was trylng to  get t o  was: 

With respect to  t h e  property that is owned by DDI, not 

Marshall Creek or some of those other areas, but 

specifically related t o  the property m e d  by DDI, i n  

the p m e e d n g  or the application that you f i l ed  mth 

the S t .  Johns County Water and Sewer Auchonty, you've 

included significant areas that were owned by DDI that  

were not part of the Nocatee DRI;  correct? 

A Well, t h a t ' s  sort of an a f t e r  the fact  

evaluation because a t  the time we made that 

application, as f a r  as we were concerned, Nocatee 
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&&I' t &st. But you nught d r a w  that  conclusion, you 

know, in a sort of ipso facto fashion. 

Q 

A I'm Willing to  a h i t ,  M r .  Menton, t h a t  

In the application that  you have f i led  - -  

there is a piece up there i n  northern S t .  Johns County 

that  is  not part of the W a t e e  Developnent that  we &I 

have i n  our cext i f icate  application. 

Q Right. 

A k s  that  help? 

Q That helps; we're gett ing there. 

And w i t h  respect t o  the application that 

you have f i l ed  in t h i s  k k e t ,  in terms of the land 

that is owned by DDI, you have requested the same area 

that  you requested i n  your application mth the St. 

Johns County Water and Sewer Authority, correct, in St. 

Johns County. 

A To the best of my knowledge, I think the 

answer is yes, understanding that amenhent that was 

made t o  the St.  Johns County application, and also 

underatanding that there was sane changes i n  the Phase 

I portion of k c a t e e ,  d~ich, i f  I remember correctly, 

primarily affected D U M ~  county. 

Q Okay. I'm on the l a s t  part of my 

t e s t imny  here. 

A Your testimony? 
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Q My testimony. 

A Oh, congatulatias; I dih't know you 

were submitting testimny. 

Q I've been accused of that in the past on 

mre than one occasion. Last set of questions here. 

And what I want to cb is just go through a 
couple of issues with you regarding the order that was 

entered by the St. Johns County Water and Sewer 

Authority with respect to the application that ycu 

filed with them for additional areas mcluding the St. 

Johns County portion of the Nocatee DRI. 

And, more specifically, this is the 

prelirmnary order that was entered on +st 4th,  1999 

by the St. Johns County Water and Sewer Authonty which 

was subsequentiy confirmed in a final order by the St. 
Johns County Board of County Ckmnissicners on Septehr 

21st, 1999, and you're farmliar w i t h  those procedures; 

correct? 

A Well, reasonably familiar. I didn't 
mewrize the order. 

Q And you testified in those proceedings on 
behalf of Intercoastal-- 

A Yes, I did. 

Q - -  in support of the application that yw 
had filed? 
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A Yes, I &d. 

Q Okay. And Mr. James testified on behalf 

of Wtermastal in support of the application that 
Intex-ccastal had filed? 

A To the best of my bowledge, he did. 

Q And M r .  Burton did as well? 

A I ' m  sorry; I &n't reme&r everybdy who 

testified and hat they testified to. 

Q Okay. 

A 

Q Now, the findings of fact in this 

I will be happy to stipulate to that. 

prelinunary order indicate that the eurrent service 

temtory for Intercwstal Utilities encompasses 

approximately 4,500 acres. 

yow testimony earlier today that remains the case; 

correct? 

And as I understand f m  

A To the best of my howledge, it h s ,  yes 

Q Okay. And then -- 
A We haven't had any territorial amenhents 

since then. 

Q And this preliminary order indicates that 

Nocatee mll  have approximately 14,000 residential 

units and several million square feet of commercial 

properties. 

understan&ng of the current size of the pmpsed 

Is that still consistent with your 
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Nocatee tkvlopnent? 

A It sounds approximately correct. 

Q And it indicates that the Nocatee 

subdivision is lccated in t w  counties, Duval and St. 

Johns County, and consists of approxmately 15 thousand 

acres. 

the Nocatee DRI? 
A 

Is that the size that you're familiar w i t h  for 

That's what I've seen quoted several 
times, yes. 

Q And then, in Finding 16, it indicates that 

Intercoastal's application for expnsion of its water 

and wastewater franchises includes substantially all of 

the 2 5 , 0 0 0  acres owned by DDI in St. Johns County. And 

BO that same area that you requested before the St. 
Johns County Water and Sewer Authority in St. Johns 

County is included in your application in this m e t ;  

right? 

A Yes. I ' m  not sure I agree w i t h  the 

2 5 , 0 0 0 .  

Q 

A 

Do ypu have any b a s i s  for disputing that? 

I think I just quoted to you a few minutes 

ago that the n m h r  1 rememkred was about 23,000. 

Q Okay. 

A But I ' m  tmt s u e  that 2,000 acres makes a 

great deal of difference between fnends. 
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Q And I.I-I its Finding No. 16, the St. Johns 

County Water and Sewer Authority concluded that DDI's 

representatives specifically requested Intercoastal not 

to proceed mth the application; & you recall that? 

A I recall it saying in that, but I w a s  not 

the recipient of that and I do not remember that as a 
true fact. 

Q Okay. And then it talks about how DDI is 

planning the 15,000 acres for bkcatee includes 12,800 
acres in St. Johns munty which relates to the 25,000 

thousand acres in St. Johns County that you have 
requested in your application wlth the a u t h o n t y ,  do 

you recall that? 
A I vaguely remember that. 

Q Okay. 

A 

been submitted. 

questions here? 

I think that hole docvment has alreae 

Are we getting to some substantial 

Q Well, I am. I ' m  krylng to figure out what 

has changed frun Intercoastal's perspective mth 

respect to t h e  developnent, with respect to 

Intercoastal itself, and with respect to the P l a n  of 

Servlce between the time of the findmgs by the St. 

Johns County Water and Sewer Authority and the 

application that you sutmitted in this docket. 
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And let me ask you: F i r s t  of all ,  we 

referenced the final order that was entered by the St. 

Johns County m s s i o n .  

of that final order is? 

Do you know hat the status 

Was there M appeal filed? 

A I thmk there was an appeal filed on that 
final order. Was there not? 

MR. WHARTON: If  youknow. 
THE WITNESS: Right at the mment, I 

can't recall. 

BY MR. MENION: 

Q Do you how whether or not there is any 
pentkng cases with respect to the application that you 

filed w i t h  the St. Johns County Water and Sewer 

Authon ty? 

A I ' m  sorry; I simply cbn't recall. 
Q In Findhg No. 24, the St. Johns County 

Water and Sewer Authority found that p u r  &sting 

service area is entirely on the east side of the 

Intercoastal, and the proposed territory to be served 

is  entirely on the west s i d e  of the watelway. 

And that remains true with respect to your , 

application w i t h  the PSC; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And then in Finding Eb. 2 5 ,  in prepaxing a 

Plan of Service for the temtory expansion area 
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Intercoastal was riot responding t o  any requests for 

service and did not obtain any information regarding 

the needs of the owners of the specific properties or 

developnents in the area. 

And that remains true w i t h  respect to the 

application to the PSC? 

A That' s not entirely true. We w e r e  

responding t o  a request f m  Gate S e m c e  company or 
Gate Petrolem, p a x h n  m e .  

Q But you were not responding to a request 

for service frcm the developer of the DRI, the Nocatee 
DRI; correct? 

A N o .  We had no idea that NDcatee even 

existed until after the application was filed. 

Q So you didn't !mow that there was a need 

€or se&ce at the time you filed the application? 

A No. I said that was no identification of 

the Nocatee Developnent until after we had filed. 

was a significant difference. 

That 

Q Now, the Plan of Service that you filed in 

the St. Johns County Water and Sewer Authority 

proceeding p m p s e d  to p m d e  service to the watee 

mvelopnent by crossing the Intracoastal Waterway; is 
that correct? 

A An amendment to the original P l a n  of 
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Servlce proposed that we could serve the initial phase 

of Watee from the existing area. 

Q So the oxxginal proposal - -  
A So h t  I ' m  trying to put across to you is 

that the original engineering P l a n  of Semce did not 

address Nocatee at all because batee was udu" to 
Intexccastal Utilities and, m fact, most of the wrld 

until after Intercoastal's application was filed. 

The response t o  amend that P l a n  of Servlce 

was done in the rmdst of that procee&ng in order to be 

able to show that Intercoastal m s  flexlble enough in 

its planning to be able to promde service to the first 

phase of Nocatee. Basically, Intercaastal' s Plan of 
Service hasn't really changed. 

application, and even in the amenhent in that Plan of 
Service, that Intercoastal was going to have to site 

plants on the west side of the Intracoastal Waterway. 
That paa of our plan of Service has changed. 

We said i~ that 

Q But the details of p u r  P l a n  of Senice 

went through several iterations h n g  the course of 

the proceedings before the St. Johns County Water and 

Sewer Authority; comct? 

A They went t h g h  several iterations 

simply because katee showed up as a brand new 

surprise to everyone and we were attempting to s h o w  
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that we could h f y  the plan in order to be able to 

provlde adequate fire service, which was another issue 

that brought up, saying that  a 10-inch main doesn't 

provide f i r e  service, which i s  balderdash, and we were 

saying, okay, we'll up that size main to a 12-irrd-1 main 
and we'll provlde the same fire servlce that you rill. 

And we made several dfications also in response to 

Something that saneone else bmughc up. 

Q The Conceptual Plan that you suhitted in 

this k k e t  is significantly dfferent frcm the plans 

that you were presenting before the St. Johns County 

Water and Sewer Authority? 

A Because this par t icu lar  plan contemplates 

service to Nocatee. 

Q Okay. And it catemplates servlce to 

bcatee with on-site facilities, which are not 

consistent with the kvelopent order? 

A which are the same on-site facilities that 

we had been planrung all along, and which I still 

believe can be installed for service to Watee and the 

development area around it. 

Q So the basic Conceptual Plan that you 

sutrmtted in this case is the same as the plan you 

subrmtted before the St Johns County Water and Sewer 

h t h o r i  ty ? 
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A M, I d~dn't eay that. I said, very 

clearly, that the plan of service that we suhnitted 

with our application i.n the St. Johns Cwnty case had 

no knowledge and did not intend to provide service to 

Nocatee. matee was announced thereafter, and we 

attempted to modify that Plan of Service EO that w e  

could serve at least the first phase of kbcatee. 

now this Conceptual Plan that has been made up by PBSW 

for Intercoastal Utilities contemplates senring watee 

through each and all of its five phases. 
makes it real crystal clear. 

And 

I hope that 

Q The St. Johns County Water and Sewer 

Authority order made a number of f i n d s  with respect 

to JEA and ita capacity and ability to provide service 

to the area that you had requested. . 

DO you recall that? 

A Y e s .  I was really surprised by that 

because was not an applicant. 

Q And-- 

A They were there for the purpose o€ 

evaluating Intercoastal Wtilities, but they instead 

evaluated everybody else but Intercoastal. 

Q Was there testimony that was preeented to 

the St. Johns County Water and Sewer Authonty with 

respect to the ability of J6?i to provlde service to the 
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area that Intercoastal had requested? 

A Oh, yes. 

Q And the Water and Sewer hthority made 

specific findings of fact with respect to m ' s  ability 

in that regard? 

A Yes. I was really amazed at that because 

JEA really brought forth no specific plans, per say, 
fo r  the sen6ce of the entire area. And now, of 

course, that's what Intercoastal has done. 

Q And are you saying then that there was no 

factual basis for the findings that were made by the 

St. Johns County Water and Sewer Authority? 

A I ' m  say5ng basically that the findmgs 

that the Water and Sewer Authority did were convenient 

to the purposes of W C ,  JEA and the County, who was a 

canpetitor and still is a ccanptitor, and a l l  of the 

ccmpetitors to Intercoastal Utilities without them 

havlng to file an application. 

Intercoastal utilities was subject to a 

g o d  deal mre examination than any of its competitors 

were, including the county, h o  found against us. 

Q Okay. In the St. Johns County Water and 

Sewer Authority order on Page 14, Findings 46  and 4 7 ,  

the authonty made specific findings of fact regar&ng 

the operating capacity of Intercoastal to serve the 
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requested te rz i to ry .  

In Finding 46, the Authority included 

taking into account this carmutment and the linuted 

size of Intercoastal's wastewater facility, even 

including the full a " t  of the cwrent emsion, and 

it b s  not appear that there w i l l  ke sufficient 

capacity to enable Intercoastal to meet the reuse needs 

of Pkcatee. 

Are you aware of any changes or 

differences in your P l a n  of Service that w u l d  enable 

you to meet the reuse needs of Nocatee at t h i s  time? 

A The Conceptual Master P l a n  of S e r v i c e  that 

we have provided in this paaicular case, I think, 

clearly outlines how we intend to meet the reuse needs 

of Nocatee. And, in fact, I think w e  &scussed that 

previously, that we intend to bring that reuse water 

over fran the excess reuse water over frao the east 

side to the western area. And if necessary, and that's 
a big if n w ,  we may end up h a m g  to tenqoxanly use a 

lower quality of groundwater to be able to supplement 

that for  akat the first three years. I think all of 

that is layed out very clearly in our Conceptual Master 
P l a n .  

thoroughly with Mx. Miller, Jim Miller. 

You might want to discuss that a little mre 

Q We talked a l i t t l e  bit a minute ago about 
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a ' s  contnbution policy mth respect to mine, and you 

talked abut that in your testimony, as w e l l .  

Isn't it true that if JEA -- I mean if 
Intercoastal obtains a certificate in this case that it 
will require that the developer contnbute signficant 
assets which  w i l l  ultimately become part of 

Intercoastal that w i l l  be put up for sale? 

A I ' m  going to answer that no, but I ' m  going 

t o  have to explain my answer because it's my 

understandmg that if Interccastal gams this 

certificate that Intercoastal m11 not be for sale. 

Q And is that based upon your discussions 

knth the shareholders of Intercoastal? 

A It's based on my discussions - -  actually, 

a direction that I received f m  M r .  James, I think 

because I asked sanewhat the same question. 

Q Now, isn't it true that Intercoastal has 

been inmlved in d~scussions on a fairly ongoing basis 
over the course of the last several years regarchng the 

sale of these systems to JXA, to St. Johns County, to 

other potential buyers as well? 

A I think you Liould have to t a l k  to M r .  

James aa to  what negotiations have taken place. But 

fran nry linuted understanding of what has been going 

on, yes, over the past three years JEP. has been looking 
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at the system. I think Interccastal has been courted 

by at least two other private utilities and St. Johns 

County. 

on Intercoastal Utilities. 

Seems like e v e w  wants to get their hands 

Q uh-huh. And in fact, you were invvlved in 

or Intercoastal was involved m discussions w i t h  JE& at 

one point regarding a potential purchase by 

Intercoastal? 

of 

A Well, that is my understanding. I haven't 

h e n  part of those negotiations. M r .  James takee care 

of that. 

Q DO r>u know wfry those discussions were 
halted? 

A It was my understanding that,  at least at 

one point, a sort of deferred from any further 

discussions because St. Johns County wanted to buy us. 

Did L E A  make a firm offer or set a price Q 
a s  to what it w a s  willing to pay for Intercoastal 

Utilities? 

A I'm not aware of whether it &d or not. 

I ' m  m t  privy to that information. 

Q In  Conclusion of Law No. 10 in the St. 

Johns CMlnty preliminary order, the Authority found as 

follows: 

certificate expansion application is approved it w i l l  

"Intercoastal contends that unless its 

not have the opportunity to continue to expand and to 

take actvantages of the economies of scale typically 

associated wlth a larger utility system. We give 

little weight to this factor in making our public 

interest deternunation given the absence of my 
credible projections of t h e  cost of pmviding service 

to the eqans icn  t e m t o r y  or the impact that such 

service will have on the rates paid by existing 

custaners of Intercoastal." 
In connection with the application you 

have filed in this docket, have you developed any 

further information that wwld respond to the critique 

that the authority had w i t h  respect to p u r  ewnunies 

of scale aqument? 

A It's my understanding that Mr. Burton's 

financial analysis provides that type of infomation. 

And, in fact, that is why I discussed w i t h  MY. 

Burton - -  one of the reagons why I discussed with Mr. 
Burton the construction of this model. 

Q Okay. So you w u l d  defer, then, to Mr. 

Burton on those issues? 
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A I muld defer to the infomation that Mr. 22 

Burton has prcduced. 23 

Q D> y~ have any knowledge - -  24 

A But that was the intent of that d e l .  25 

Q And would Mr. B u r t o n  be the only person 

that could respond to those issues that you how of? 

A I ' m  not really certain what it is you're 

asking to be- respnded to. 

Q Well, I ' m  just trying to figure out if 

there is any additional testimny that Intercoastal is 

going to present in this proceeding to address that 

concern that was noted by the St. Johns County Water 

and Sewer Authomty. 

A If I understand what you're saying 

correctly, my answer is still the same. Mr. Burton's 

financial analysis and projections include not only the 

new semce area but the rate impact that w u l d  result 

to all of Intercoastal's custaners existing in its 

currently certificated area, as well as the one that 

he's supplied to this ~ s s i o n .  

Q 
figure out is: 

know of that wuld address that emnormes of scale 

issue? 

And that's the only - -  what I ' m  trying to 

Is that the only infomtion that you 

MR. WHARTON: Well, first of all that's a 
total mischaracterization of that. It talks 

about emnatues scale, and then it goes on to 

say but since you &&It give us this, these 

costs, but you keep saylng the problem that they 
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have w i t h  the e c o n d e s  of scale. I just think 

it's - -  I mean, p a r e  readmg parts of ths 

order and our testimny is filed and it speaks 

for itself. 

MR. M-N: okay. Well, 1% trying to 

see if he - -  if there is any other issues that 

you h-cw of regarding - -  or any other testimny 
that is going to be presented regarding the 

ecOIlOrmes of scale other than Mr. Burton? 

THE WITNGSS: To K-he best of my knowledge, 

Mr. Burton's testimny 90 far is the only one 

d c h  discusses the effects of the econcrmes of 

scale. 

BY MR. MEKLION: 

Q And you haven't done any independent 

analysis of those issues? 

A I have not &ne a parallel analysis to Mr. 
Burton' s f inancia1 projections , if that s responsive to 

your question. 

MR. MI5m3N: I don't have any further 

questions. 

(Bnef break.) 

CROSS-EixAMINATION 

8Y MR. KDRN: 

Q Mr. Forrester, as you h o w ,  I ' m  Michael 
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Korn and I represent the Sawgrass Association. 
a couple of questions for you, and I'll try to be as 

brief as I can. 

1 have 

A Yes, sir. 

Q You indicated that the numkr of odor 

complaints stemning from the current wastewater 

treatment facility adjacent to Saqrass has reduced 

substantially. That would be your testimony; correct? 

A Y e s ,  bth the n m h r  of canplaints that 

Intercoastal has received and the times that I have 

called back to the FDEP they have also indicated that 

the n&r of canplaints has considerably reduced, in 

fact, it was virtually nil. 

Q Does Intercoastal Utilities maintain an 

odor log which wxld memrialize when canplaints are 

made to the Intermastal Utilities offices h u t  odor? 

A I Qn't think we have maintained 
specifically an odor log, per say. 

Q Has Intercoastal Utilities maintained any 

written records that m l d  indicate when they had 

received calls, whether by phone or any other methcd, 

corry?laining ahxt odor at its existing wastewater 
plant? 

A I think pmbably if we have maintained any 
records of that type it wwld be in the operating log 
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of the wastewater plant. 
Q And you are responsible, in part,  for the 

maintenance of that log? 

A No. That lcg is maintained by the 
operators on site at the plant. 

Q who is the main operator on site at the 

plant at the present time? 

A I'm sorry; we've got: some new operators, 

and I ' m  not familiar w i t h  all of their names. 

Q Eo your best. 

A The operatias manager is Mr. Hughey 
James, or H. V. James. He's no relation to H. R. 

James. 

Q And my recollection of Mr. Hughey James is 

for sane period of that he has been affiliated w i t h  

time. would that be a correct statement? More than 

three years? 

A Absolutely. 

Q Okay. Does Intercoastal Utilities have 

access to any wntten records maintained by FDEP 

concerning odor canplaints concerning the Sa-ss 

Wastewater Plant? 

A 

records? 

Q 

we mrrently have access to those 

Does FDEP provide you information relating 
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to "plaints that FDEP has received concerning &r at 

that plant? 

A No, not to the best of my howledge. 
We've simply relied on telephone calls to FDEP to keep 

us apprised of any &r canplaints that have been 

caning in on a regular basis. 

Q Now, you earlier testified b u t  the plan 

of pmnding reuse recleaned water for idgation 

purposes on the west side of the Intracoastal Waterway. 
A Yes, sir. 

Q And you indicated in you p n o r  testimony 

that excess reuse generated fran the ensting plant 

would be used, in part, to fulfill any reuse needs, if 

you were to receive the certificated area f m  the PSC; 

is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you have an estimate as to how much 

excess reuse would be available, at any particular 

pint in time, that muld be eligible for being sent to 

the western part of the certificated area should 

Intercoastal receive it? 

A The only way I think I could quantify that 

would be by the pennit parameters. And the permit 

parameters allow us to discharge up to 1.2 million 

gallons to the Intracoastal Waterway. 
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Now, realistically, you understand that 
S a q s s  Country Club is allowed to k r l t h d r a w  as much of 

that reclaimed water as it needs at any given time. 

And, in fact, if it cbesn't mthdraw the water, the 
water rises to a pint here automatic controls kick in 

and simply take that water to the Intracoastal 

Waterway, 9~ that's that sort of a permit cnteria, or 

it is a cnteria that: was written into the p e m t  to 

simply reflect that there should be a linut to wfiat 

goes to the Intracwstal Waterway. It doesn't, in any 

way, lint how much Saqrass Country Club can take out 
of it. 

Q The actual mechanism by which the water 

that is reclaimed finds its way either to the 

irrigation purposes of the club or ultimately to the 

waterway, would be a dscharge from the plant into an 

adlacent b d y  which has been referred to as the green 

pond or the green lake; is that correct? 

That's the way it finds its way to the A 

S a q c a s s  County Club. 

Q Right. 

A That reuse. 

Q NOW -- 
A It is not the way that it finds its way to 

the Intracmstal waterway. 
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Q That was going to b= my next question. 

The water is initially deposited frun the plant after 

it has been prucessed to appropriate grade, placed into 

the green pond; correct? 

A On a typical basis, yes. 

Q And then the Sawpass Country C l u b  w l d  

w i t h d r a w  hatever i t  needed €or imgation purposes 

f r a n  that green pond, and the balance m l d  be shipped 

by pipe to the Intracoastal Waterway; correct? 

A Yes. The way that it actually works is 
the normal flow is into that pond frun the plant. 

the point that that pond reaches the preset or 
predetermined p a n t ,  then a valve closes, it no longer 
goes in to  that pnd, pumps are then actuated and it 

goes krectly from the plant to the Intracoastal 

Waterway. 

At 

Q So that process wwld not require any 

human involvement. 

depending on the level of the water in the green pond? 

It wuld work autmtically 

A It does wrk autunatically. That's vhy 

there is tm pumps in that configuration because but it 
only takes one to d6 it and the second pump is there 

for redundancy purposes. 

Q You have personally observed the green 

pnd, have you not, personally looked at it and you've 
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nsited the area? 

A Yes. 

Q Is it a fair statement that the pond is, 
in fact, green in color? 

A Oh, yes. It's continually green because 

of the algae that g r v w s  in it frun a l l  of the 
fertilizers that are spread m d  that pond and frcm 

the discharge frun the Sawgzass Maintenance Facilicy 

that goes into that p d .  

the pond is crystal elear. And, in fact, meets all of 
the reuse standards. 

Saqrass d e s  it green not hecause the S a q c a s s  

Wastewater Plant makes it green. 

The water that w e  put into 

The green Lake is green because 

Q And is it your testimny that: the same 
level of quality of discharge has been in place prior 

to the sequential batch reactor change that the plant 

went through recently? 

A Are we putting out - -  are you asking me if 
we're putting cut the same quality of effluent as we 

did previously? 

Q Yes, that was my question. 
A The answer is no, it's better. 

Q And it is your testimony that, at least as 

we sit here today, the effluent that is being 

Ascharged after treatment from the plant is not the 
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cause of any of the algae or other reuse water at the 

pond is green? 

A That's correct because, basically, that 

algae1 gz-cwth results fKxn nutnents and this is a 

nutrient remnl process. And, quite frankly, it has 

been relatively low in nutnents since we went to a 

high level disinfection treatment at the plant. 

Q When did that occur? 

A I wuld say in the early 90s. But, of 
course, you understand that the recent upgrading to the 

plant was specifically to lower the nutnent levels to 

the degree that was necessary for discharge to the 

Intracoastal Watemay. 

Q Elow, prior to the change in your disposal 

method of the excess effluent, the water that would be 

discharged fran the green lake would go where? 

other mrds, the water t ha t  was not used for imgation 

purposes, what would happen to that water before the 

pipe was connectmg the green lake to the Intracoastal 

Waterway? 

In 

A It is my understanding that there was an 

opening in the berm. 

scape, but I think that is pzobably overstating it. 
But, apparently, there was an opening in the berm of 
that lake wfiich is owned either by Sawgrass Country 

I wuld like to call it a slew 
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C l u b  and/or the Master's Association hich allowed that 

water to escape into the stormwater lakes of the 

Sawgrass Cevelopnent. 

And that, in fact, was the impetuous for 

the direction of the FDHP to provide for a discharge 

path to the Intracoastal Waterway. 

Q Is it the position of Intercoastal 

Utilities that FDBP, when It required the change in the 

plant to accmplish what you have just descnhed. also 

required an expansion of the plant to its current 1.5 

million gallon tank capacity? 

A No. The e.xpansion of the plant was a 

by-product of the upgradmg of the plant. 

Q You may have been asked this before, but I 
juet want to confirm it. 

Intercoastal Utilities; is that conect? 

You are not a shareholder of 

A No, I am not. 

Q 
A I am not a corporate officer or a &rector 

And you are not a 2irectory 

of Intercoastal Utilities. 

Q Are you familiar with any &scussions that 

have been ongoing, say within the last t m  years, 

between Intercoastal Utilities and Saqcass Country 

Club for acquisition of wells within the country club 

PrQE=*Y? 
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A As far as I hcw, the acquisition only 

included one well. 

Q W e r e  you involved - -  I'm sorry; go ahead. 

A 

Q 

But I am aware that that  was ongoing. 

Who is the person at Intercoastal 

Utilities wfio has been responsible for that negotiation 

with the cwntry  club regarding t he  wells? 

A To the best of my knmledge, it would 

either be Mr. H .  R. James or his son K. M. James, Kelly 

Mike. 

Q K. M.? 

A Yes, K. M. 

Q h s  he go by sanethmg other than K. M., 

or is K. M. good enough? 

A 

Q MF. 

Most people call h i m  Mike or Kelly Mike. 

Are you aware of the current status of the 

discussions w i t h  S a q r a s s  Country C l u b  concerning the 

well in question? 
A It was my understanding that that 

acquisition of the well was supposed to have been 

closed by now. 

Q Now, you mentioned that Intercoastal 

Utilities has been involved in discussions w i t h  the 

P l a n t a t i o n  kvelopnent to provide reuse as a back-up 
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sLIpply? 

A Yes. 

Q When you say a back-up supply, that at 

least infers a situation here the Plantation would not 

have adequate acurce of supply within their ovm lake 

system to be able to supply their irrigation needs for 

their course; vould that be a fair statement? 

A It might be wre fair  to simply say that 
the reclaimed water wwld be used to replenish that 
lake or that  lake system to prevent an excessive d r a w  

dDwn of the lakes. 

Q What are some of the - -  
A That would be -- 
Q I ' m  sorry. 

A 

Q What are m e  of the reaeans, in yaur  

opinion, that would cause a draw down of the lakes 

at the Plantation that muld require the replenishment 

as a back-up as you describe i t? 

That would bz the back-up supply tcl It. 

A W e l l ,  a significant increase in the 

imgation water use. 

Q Okay. If we assume that the same w u n t  

of temtory was being imga ted ,  muld that alea 

suggest that pertraps the weather was d q  and therefore 

there was a lack of ra in ,  and therefore the draw down 
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was required as a result of that? 

A I thnk that's a reasonable Conclusion. 

Q And how far is the  Plantation from 

Sawgrass? 

A 

Q Well, let's say, yes, from the phnt to 

FKm the Saigcass Wastewater P l a n t ?  

the Plantation. 

far that i s  in feet or miles? 

Can you give me an estimate as to how 

A I'm sorry; I really - -  as I sit here 

t d a y ,  I could not estimate that with any confidence. 

Q Would it be fair to assume that i f  the 

climate candi t icn was such at: the Plantation that it 

required them to replenish their lake system that the 

Sawgrass Country Club might also be required additional 
supplies of reuse water for their irrigation needs? 

A 

Q And that would, of course, also affect the 

I think that's a reasonable assunption. 

amount of eligible reuse that rrught be available for 

other ptential users; correct? 

A Well, for any other ptential user. I 
think I explained that the S a q r a s s  Country Club can 

take as much as it possibly can out of that water and 

then, of mume, wfiatever is left is h t ' s  available 

to anyone else. 

Q I think ths question has pmbably been 
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asked, and I know you have answered it a few times, but 

I lust want to make sure it's clear. 

Under the existing Intercoastal Utilities 

elan of Senice, can you envision any scenaxio under 

bihich the prcpsed west side expansion m u l d  be served 

by wastewater capacity in any way from the current 

Saqzass plant? 

A You mean taking the Nocatee closed or that 

area closed back over to the Sawqass plant? 

Q ?hat was the question, yes, sir. 

A No. 

Q The existing wastewater treatment facility 

adjacent to Sar*rgrass is permitted €or 1.5 
GPDs. Can you tell me, at least in estimated fashion, 

what the current utilization of the plant is today? 

millions 

A I really don' t have those figures in front 

of me, but 1 thmk it's close t o  a million gallons. 

Q would the exact mut be - -  
A NOW - -  
Q -- found in the operating lcg? 

A It w u l d  be more appropriate to t a k e  that 

frcm the discharge nwnitoring reports. 

understand that those flows are reported in several 

different ways, as an annual average daily flow, as an 

average daily flow for the mmth and then as a 

And you 
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three-month avelage daily flow. 

Q I did not want -- 
A So the answer that I ' m  t-ng to give you 

right at the "ent, and h e n  I say a million gallons 

per day I ' m  probably thinking more in terms of the 
currently monthly average daily flow that I can 

remember seeing on the &scharge monitoring report, and 

the  three mnths average daily total and annual average 

daily total w u l d  k=e pmprtionately leea. 

Q Okay. 
A I would say it is no less than 50 percent 

utilized by whatever standards. 

Q And like I said, I don't want to turn this 

into a memory ccmtest, but the best evidence, of 

m u s e ,  would be in those reports, would that be 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And would you have a prublem in prcducing 
those reprts to us after the deposition as a 

late-filed exhibit? 

A Depending on the time that we have 
available, they are public records. 

MR. W T Q N :  Rather than as a 

late-filed, I mean can we just puts sane 

parameters on them and we'll eend them to you? 

MR. KORN: If you'll send them to me,  

John, I ' m  sure w e  can - -  
M R .  "N: What ck you w a n t ,  in terms 

of parameters? 

TH6: WITNESS: Now, understand what you're 

asking for, this hscharge mnitoring reports 

for each one are h u t  an inch thick. 

MR. KIIR" I understand. 

THE WITNESS: And you wuld have to have 
sane- to l m k  at t h e m  and interpret them 

for you. 

MR. WHARTON: LXI you want this year' s? 

M R .  KDRN: We can go of the record to 
d ~ s c u s  that. After Mr. Forrester finishes maw 

we can & s a s s  that. We don't need to clutter 

up the record at this pint. 

I would think at m i n i m  -- well, let me 
ask this question, and I think that may pin it 

down * 

BY MR. KORN: 

Q Mr. Forrester, you indicated in your prior 

testimny that you believe the plant has gone on-line 

mth the new changes -- I ' m  talking about the 

wastewater treatment plant -- but that the final 
approml frun FDEP has not yet been formally granted? 
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A No, sir. That's incorrect. 

Q All right. Tell me hat your testimny 

A The reference to not being certified as 

yet was to the water treatment plant improvements. 

Q All right. Thank you. 

A The wastewater treatment plant 

improvements have long been certified. 

Q Did those cane on-line in approximately 

February of last year, Febxuary of 20007 

A No, sir, they were substantially on-line 

at the end of 1999. 

Q I understand, but -- 
A We had appdrrately a pen& of 30 to 

60 -- well, actually, wre like 60  to 90 days of 

start-up operation of the plant, in other mrds, 

getting the plant biologically attuned or tuned up in 

order to be able to reach its peak performance. 

that took f r u n  roughly January 1st through possibly 
March 31st. 

And 

Q Do you recall whether Interccastal 

Utilities had requested an extension frcm FDEP until 

approximately February 14 of 2000 i n  order to put the 
plant on-line and whether -- and what FDEP's response 
to that request was? 
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A To the best of my knowledge, they extended 

the period of time. And, of cou19e, the reason we 

asked for that was because we were getting so much 

equlpnent in at the last nunute in the latter part of 

1999 and that was - -  this is, of course, my kst  

recollection, but we went ahead and asked for that 

extension lust to be sure that we didn't cane in 

dolation. But the plant was substantially complete at 

the end of 1999 and was being, as I said, operationally 

teamed up during the first three mnths of 2000. 
Q You referenced Mr. Davld Porter, who all 

be Intercoastal's expert with respect to the used and 

useful portion of the analysis of the upccming rate 

case. 

A Yes. 

Q Where is Mr. Porter's office located' 

A Where is h i s  office located? 

Q Where is he based from? 

A I haven't got his address with m e ,  but as 

I understand it's in Clay County, somehere around 

Orange Park, I think. 

Q Has Intercoastal Utilities used Mr. 

Porter' s services before? 

A No. 

Q Was he recarmended by the current 
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engineers that you're working with? 

A By our current engineers, no. I &ubt 
that really seriously. No. I came to h o w  M r .  Porter 

by other means, and we decided to talk to Mr. Porter 

about doing t h i s  work. 

Q Y o u  were asked sane questions earlier 

about the interrelationehip between the hval portion 

of the Nocatee Devlopent arid the St. Johns County 

portion. 

As we sit here today, do you have any 
estimate as to the number of ERCs that wuld be within 

the Wval portion of the Nocatee DRI? 

Not right at the ment. A 

Q Same question as to the St. Johns @uty 

portion. 

A Are you talking a b u t  as - -  you mean to 
split the entire universe of WCs between the St. Johns 

County portion and the D u d  county prtion? 

Q Y e s ,  sir, that was the purpase of the 

question. 

your understanchng of the difference between those t w o  

portions of the Nocatee DIU. 

I'm trying to get an understanding as to 

A I Qn't really believe that I can recall 

right at the Kment how many of those HlCs a r e  in the 
Duval County portion because I don' t remember - -  1 
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don't remember whether Phase I actually a t s  off all  111 

kval county or not. 

If I remember correctly, there are 2,193 

WCs -- no, strike that, that's a different set of 

nlrmbers. I'm sorry; I can' t answer your question. I 
h ' t  hm. 

Q Okay. That's fine. 

You were asked some questions a b u t  Fruit 

D3 you k n o w  approximately how many Cove Utilities. 

custaners are served by Fruit Cove Utilities? 

A If I remember correctly, I think tbere i s  

something l i k e  65  that are served wastewater and over 

150 - - -  
(Brief interruption and discussion off the 

recurd. ) 

BY MR. KQW: 

Q I ' m  gorry; hefore the interruption I think 

you were telling me there were 65 wastewater custaners 

m fruit Cove, and I think you said 150 and then we got 

interrupted. 

A Sanebhere between 150 and 165 water 

customers in Fruit Cove. 

Q Haw long has JUM provlded management 

senices for Fruit Cove' 
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A To the best of n y  hwledge, I came to 25 

work for Jax Utilities Management in 1984, and I 

believe that they have certainly provided those 

services since 1984. Prior to that, I have no 

howledge. 

Q You were asked sane questions about your 

understanding of the definition of a regional utility. 

And as I recall your response was tha t  you wuld define 

it as serving a large area, not necessarily one that 

was key to a particular subdivision or one development. 

A I was trying to explain the two ends of 

the spectnm. 

Q Are you familiar with the custaner base in 
1983 that was purchased which became Intercoastal 

Utilities? 

That's a bad question. L e t  me t r y  it 

You're familiar in 1983 nth the fact that again. 

Intercoastal Utilities purchased the wastewater 

treatment facility adjacent to the Sawgrass 

Developnent; correct? 

A Yes.  

Q And there were a number of custmers, both 

water and wastewater custaners - -  
A Yes. 

Q -- that were being served by that plant 
Are you aware in 1983 whether the plant 

180 

was serving any customers other than the custcmers in 

the adjacent S a w s s  buntry Club curnnunity? 

A In 1983, I doubt it. 
Q Okay. 

A The area has grown exp=nentially since 

then. 

Q And to your knowledge - -  I'm sorry: you 

said that you joined Intercoastal at what pint? 

A No, I said -- 
Q J I 3 l ; I ' m s o n - y .  

A 

Q 1984, okay. 

-- Jax Utilities Management m 1984. 

Are you aware o€ any discussion of any 

kind between 1984 and the present here Intercoastal 

Utilities Baught to site and construct another 

wastewater treatment facility other than its current 

plant adjacent to S a q r a s s ?  

A I'm not aware of us - -  well, I take that 
back. I think that there was a wastewater plant 

installation that had been planned for what they call 
the odan's Mill area, but I ' m  not really sure if - -  I ' m  

not really sure how f a r  that got o f f  the ground. 

not aware of that being in operation at the time that I 

came to work for JUM. 

I ' m  

Q n> you h o w  hen Ddc"s Mill was first 
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platted? 

A No. 

Q Do you k n o w  &ether 0 3 " s  M i l l  was owned 

priox to its being platted by either Florida Title or 

Florida Land? 

A I suspect that it was because i t  was my 

understanding that F l o r i d a  Title had held that land for 

some 20 yeara &€ore it began to develop it. 

Q And for the record, the 0dC"s Mill 

Developent is located adjacent to Gxmty Road 210 in 

St. Johns County? 

A m e  Ddan's Mill Developnent is, yes. 

Q On the east side, within the current 

certificated area of Intercoastal? 

A I'm not sure that the present area that is 
platted as 0dO"s Mill is necessarily the same that 

nught have been referred to in relationship to that 
planned wastewater plant. 

Q W e r e  you pers6tlally involved in any of 

those discussions concerning t h i s  0 d " s  Mill 

situation? 

A No. 

Q 

JUM was? 

A 

Do you h who at either 

The only one that I could 

Intercoastal or 

reasonably 
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assure you probably was Mr. H. R. James. 

Q And Mr. James has been the President of 

Intercoastal for as long as you have been affiliated 
with SUM? 

A Yes. 

Q Same question as to hls affiliation with 

JUM. 

A Yes. 

Q You mentioned that it was Intercoastal 

Utilities' goal to saneday phase out the wastewater 

treatment facility adjacent to Sawgrass. 

If the PSC were to grant p u r  requested 

certificated area, do have any estimate as to when that 

nught take place? 

A No, I hn't think I could give an estimate 

because, obviously, the wastewater plant would have to 

be sited and then, of aurae, constructed. I wuld 
imagine it would probably be its first expansion. 

guess is within the first seven years. 
My 

Q what other vanables, other than the 

siting and construction of the plant ,  would you 

consider to be impaant in determining h e n  - -  if and 
when the Sawgrass plant might be phased out if 

Intercoastal wuld receive the certificated area? 

A I think it would be partly at least 
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dependent upon the rate of growth in the western area 

to the extent that it would call for the next increment 

of expansion. 

Q Y o u  were asked sane time ago ahxt the 
propsed rate case deadline of M a y  1, ZOO1 that 

Intercoastal Utilities wwld be required to canply w i t h  

if it didn't get an extension; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Can you give us any idea as to when 
Intercoastal Utilities will h o w  whether they are going 

to either ccmply with the May 1, 2001 deadline or seek 

an extension w i t h  respect to the rate case application? 

A In all honesty, it's probably gob9 to be 

the day before. We're going to be working very, very 

hard between now and then to try to corplete the 

f i l i n g ,  and it's probably going to very, very 

close. 

MR. KORN: Thank you, Mr. Forrester. 
MR. WHARTON: Samantha? 

MS. CIBULR: We lust have a couple of 

questions. 

CROSS-EUMINATION 

BY MS. CIBULA: 

Q Hi, Mr. Forrester, this is Samantha Cibula 

nth t h e  public Service C"isslon. How are you t d y ?  

154  

A I'm fine. How are you? 

Q Okay. First, just to clarify a respse 

that I think you gave to one of Mr. Melson's questions, 
&d I hear p u  say that Intercoastal is not planning to 

request a service availability charge to renew' 

A That was not part of our projections, if I 

remember correctly. 

Q If that is not the case, why are t he re  

amounts projected for CIAC cash on the schedule for 

CIAC's reclaimed water found on NB-3, Page 138, Line 7 

or Mr. Burton's prefiled testimny? 
A 5 can' t really answer that unless it's a 

prorated portion of the $620.25 that Intercoastal now 

charges. 

that. 

I really don' t remember any &scussion of 

Q Okay. Is Intercoastal requesting a reuse 

rate in its application? 

A I don't believe Intercoastal has actually 

asked €or a reuse rate in its application. 

contemplation was that we would probably have to come 

badc to the d s s i o n  assmning that our initial 

application was approved and establish a reuse rate. 

We do not have an exlsting reuse rate 

The 

MS. CIBULP: That is all the questions we 

have. 
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MR. MELSON: I just have t w  questians. 

FSDIR6- EXAMINATION 

BY M R .  MELSON: 

Q With regard to Mr. Burton's d e l ,  does 

Intercoastal Utilities or Jax Utilities Management have 

any agreement with Mr. Burton abwt the use that he can 
make of that model for other clients? 

A To the best of my knowledge, he can use 

that d e l  as a basis for projection for any other 

utility, but not in a proceeding here Interccastal is 

concerned. 

Q All right.  And I understand the primary 

hfference between the temtones sought in the St. 

Johns County certificate case and PSC is the Duval 
County portion of the Nocatee D R I .  

Does Intercoastal, at same pint in the 

future, =template seeking an extension to serve other 

DDI owned lands in Guval County? 

A I thlnk it w x l d  probably be fair game to 
say that if Intercoastal 1s granted this application 

and the area which now includes the DDI lands north of 

matee that we have applied for, I suppose that there 

may be some time in the future that  we t ~ x r l d  probably 

ask for additional lands if we thought that those lands 

were going to develop. 
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further north, hich wwld reach into D u n 1  County. 

Q Is the potential lmping of lines frun the 

noahern pxt of the exlsting service area shown at all 

on the Conceptual Master Plan? 

A Idm ' t th inkso .  

MR. MELSON: That's a l l  I've got. Thank 

YW. 
MR. WHARTON: We'll read. 

(Witness excused. ) 

(Whereupon, the taking of the deposition was 

concluded at 6:49  o'clock p.m.) 
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Q I guess what makes yw think that the St. 

Johns County pcrtion of those lands will develop to the 
pint that you would apply for a ceeificate today but 

you don't kelieve the D u n 1  County portion wuld 

develop to the pint that you would ask for a 

certificate for the Duval County land? 

A 

Q F-ssing on the DDI lands outside of 

Would you state that just one mre time? 

kcatee, why would y w  apply for St. Johns munty lads 

and not for Dum1 County lands? 

A Well, at the " e n t ,  t h e  area that we have 

applied for m l d  be serviceable frun the north section 

of Intercoastal's =sting franchise. And, of course, 

bringing lines across the Intracoastal Waterway at that 

particular pint to l a p  those lines down through 

matee would mean that we would probably w a n t  to 

provlde semce in that area as well. 

picked the area that w e  did was 90 that we could bring 

those lmes across frrm the northem section of the 

existing certificate area. Now, we honestly believe 

that that area is going to also develop. 

That's h y  we 

Q Is that - -  
A N o w ,  if that area does develop, then I can 

possibly see us extending the request to - -  or 
extending -- requesting EO extend the certificate 
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C E R T I F I C A T E  O F  O A T H  

STATE OF FLORIDA 

CQUNlT OF DWAL 

I, the undersigned authonty, d3 hereby certify 
that M. L. FORRESTEX personally appeared before me and 

was first duly sworn to testify to the whole truth. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this 15th day 
of April, 2001. 

Elaine M.  Wall, Notaq Public 

State of F l o r i d a  at L a r g e  
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- c s E T L E r c & E s  
STATE OF FLORIDA 

COuNlY OF DWAL 

I, Elaine M. Wall, Court Reporter, cb hereby 

certify that I was authorized to and did 

stenographically report the foregoing deposition; and 

that the transcript is a true record of the testimony 

given by the mtness. 

1 further certify that 1 am not a relative, 

employee, attorney or counsel of any of the parties, 
nor am I a relative or employee of any of the parties’ 

attorney or counsel connected with the action, nor am I 

financially interested in the action. 

IN WITNESS WEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my 

hand t h i s  15th day of A p r i l ,  2001. 

Elaine M. Wall, N3tarjr public 

State of Florida at w e  
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S T A T E  O F  F L O R I D A  

D E P A R T M E N T  O F  C O M M U N I T Y  A F F A I R S  
" D e d i c a t e d  t o  m a k i n g  f l o r i d a  a b e t t e r  p l a c e  t o  call home"  

JEB BUSH 
Governor 

24 January 2001 

Mr. John L. Wharton 
Rose, Sundstrom & Bentley, LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Dear Mr. Whax-ton: 

STEVEN M. SEIBERT 
Secretarv 

RECEIVED 
JAN 25 2001 

This letter is in response to your letter of January 23,2001, regarding the Application for 
Development Approval for the proposed Nocatee Development of Regional Impact (DN). Your 
letter asked whether the Department required the potable and wastewater facilities to be located 
offsite as part of our review of the Application for Development Approval (ADA). 

The developer represented in the ADA that the facilities wouId be located offsite. The 
Department did not require the facilities to be located offsite and does not proffer an opinion 
regarding onsite versus offsite. The Department's review of the project's overall impacts was 
based on the developer's representation. Since the developer represented facilities would be 
located offsite, the Department did not have to assess potential impacts that may result from 
facilities being onsite. If facilities were to be located onsite versus offsite, as represented in the 
ADA, the Department would want to assess whether this change would create an impact not 
previously reviewed. Therefore, we asked that a condition stating facilities would be located 
offsite be included in the development order. 

Your letter also asked whether the Department considered the specific provider for the 
potable and wastewater facilities as part of its review. The Department did not consider the 
specific provider as part of its review. The Department's primary concern in this matter is that 
adequate potable and wastewater service is available when the development receives building 
permits and that any necessary mitigation to meet those demands are addressed in the 
development order. 
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Mr. JohnL. Wharton 
24 January 2001 
Page Two 

Your final question addressed Mi.  Gauthier's earlier testimony to the Public Service 
Commission which stated, in part, that he did "not anticipate any difficulties as long as there is a 
utility committed to serving the development." You asked whether any of the above matters 
change Mr. Gauthier's conclusions in his testimony. Mr. Gauthier has reviewed your 
correspondence of January 23,2000 1, and has stated that the facts as you have represented them 
do not change the conclusion represented in his testimony. The service provider for the Nocatee 
development is not our primary concern, as stated earlier, our primary concern is that adequate 
facilities are available to the development at the time of final permitting. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter please call James Stansbury or me at 
(850) 487-4545. 

Bob Cambric, AICP 
Community and Citizen Liaison 

Attachment (Wharton Letter) 

cc: Ms. Billie Messer (Public Service Commission) 
Mr. Ed Lehman (Northeast Florida Regional Planning Council) 
Ms. Teresa Bishop (St. Johns County) 
Ms. Jeannie Fewell (City of Jacksonville) 
Ms. Lynn Pappas (Applicant's representative) 
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DE ART IN s. FRIEDMAN. P.A. 
JOHN R. 1 EN hlNS. P.A. 

F. ~ ~ R S H A L L  DETERDING 

STEVEN T. MINDLIN, P.A. 
JOSEPH P. PATKIN 
DAREN L. SHIPPY, LLM. TAX 
Wll.LlA.'~l E. SUNDSTROM, P.A. 
DIANE D TREhIOR, P.A. 
JOHN L WHARTON 

LAW OFFICES 

ROSE, SUNDSTROM Br BENTLEY, LLP 
2548 BLAIRSTONE PINES DRIVE 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 

(850) 877-6555 

MALINC ADDRESS 
POST OFFICE B o x  1567 

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302-1 567 

TELECOPIER (850) 656-4029 

ROBERT M. C. ROSE 

VIA HAND DELlVERY . 
* -  ,--- I 

Mr. Bob Cambric, AlCP 
Growth Management Ad mi n ist ra to r 
Department of Community Affairs 
2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-21 00 

Re: Application for Development Approval 
Sufficiency Response Review for the 
Proposed Nocatee Development of Regional Impact (DRI); 
File No. ADA-0400-014 
Our File No. 26003.13 

Dear Mr. Cambric: 

Thank you for taking the time to meet with me yesterday at your offices. Please 
accept what follows as the question which I represented I would put into writing and have 
delivered to you. Thank you in advance for your expeditious consideration of these 
matters. 

In the review of the above referenced ADA, did the review process involve 
consideration of, and/or did DCA consider, t h e  Substantive relative merits of the 
location of water and wastewater facilities either outside the Nocatee development 
or located within the Nocatee development? In other words, did the DCA seek to 
make any substantive determination that the location of these facilities outside the 
development was somehow preferable or superior to the location of these facilities 
inside the development? Obviously, the Water Management District, the 
Department of Environmental Protection and the Public Service Commission would 
all eventually be involved in any ultimate decision on these issues. 

Did this process involve consideration of, or did the DCA consider, the substantive 
relative merits of service to the Nocatee development (should it be approved and 
developed as is projected) by either NUC, Intercoastal, or some other utility? In 
other words, did this process involve, or did the DCA engage in, a comparison of 



Mr. Bob Cambric 
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NUC to Intercoastal in an attempt to decide which would be the preferable or 
superior provider of services to the Nocatee development? 

As we discussed, Charles Gauthier has filed prefiled testimony on behalf of the 
Commission Staff in this case which concludes (in response to a question inquiring 
whether tbere would be any impact in the DRI process if the Commission denied 
NUC’s application and approved Intercoastal as the utility service provider for the 
Nocatee DRI) that “1 do not anticipate any difficulties as long as there is a utilky 
committed to serving the development”. Are we correct in our understanding that 
nothing about t h e  DRI review process, or t he  anticipated Development Order, will 
change Mr. Gauthier’s testimony? In other words, is it true that the DRI process and 
the anticipated Development Order will leave the question of which utility is best to 
serve the Nocatee development to other agencies having regulatory jurisdictionover 
the same (primarily, but perhaps not exclusively, the Public Service Commission)? 

Please call me if you have any questions regarding the above, or any other facet 
of this case. t look forward to hearing from you with regard to the above. 

Sincerely, 

ROSE, SUNDSTROM & BENTLEY 

J&hn L. Wharton 
For Tne Firm 
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